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01. 'Public 'fnlih/s general 'lnf ctrml1licm

REGISTERED NAME 
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POSTAL ADDRESS 
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WEBSITE ADDRESS 
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02. 'Business 'Prc,(11£

Delivering Our Strategy in 2013/14 The Following Achieved Among Others 



03. 'Our 'Business

The Agribusiness Development Agency is a public entity established in 2009 by the Provincial 

Cabinet to provide support to entrant Black Commercial farmers in a coordinated and integrated 

manner in the Province. The Agency is located under the Department of Agriculture and Rural 

Development. In driving its mandate the Agency has prioritised the following Key Focus Areas; 
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• At the Cabinet Lekgotla of June 2009 the DARD presentation included a proposal for the SPV as an option.

• Importantly the SPV section of the presentation was linked to the initial 36 Land Bank Distressed farms.

• A small team from DEDT, DARD, DLA was set-up to work out the proposal for the SPV and immediately to investigate the 36
Land Bank farms.

• At the end of the lndaba, the Premier set up a Ministerial Sub- Committee to address Land Reform Support.

• The Ministerial Sub-Committee included MECs for COGTA. DEDT, Finance and DARD.

• On 29 July 2009, thet Provincial Cabinet approved the establishment of the SPV to coordinate post settlement support to

commercialt farmers of transferred land reform projects.

• ADA became fully operational under the KZN Agricultural Trust

• It was assigned to the Department of Economic Development and Tourism

• The first Board of Trustess was nominated

• The first priority was the implementation of the turnaround strategy for distressed farmers

• The first Chief Excutive Officer was appointed

• Supported 121 farms, most of which were in the sugarcane industry

• ADA earnestly began the process of filling all critical positions in the entity

• Funding sources were mainly CASP Funding for project implementation and DEDT funding for operations

• DRDLR and COGTA also collaborated with ADA on some projects and provided financial resources where necessary

• Tabled the first ADA 5 year Strategic Plan

• 61 projects supported

• 1500 jobs created

• 308 farmers trained in finance and production skills

• The ADA reached its maturing phase

• Legislation consulted

• ADA moved from DEDT to DARD

• Developed the agrihub model

• Implemented Catalytic projects

• Conducted a feasibility studies of agrihub

• New Board and anciallary committes appointed

• New Organogram approved
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Mr Cyril Xaba 

MEC for Department of Agriculture 

and Rural Development 

05. 'Foreword by the 'fXfflllinq f.ilulhDrihj

South Africa has a robust and productive agricultural sector. Although, its contribution to the Gross 

Domestic Product has decreased over the past four decades, it continues to be self-sufficient in 

almost all major agricultural products and is a net food exporter. On the other hand, South Africa 

has a dual agricultural economy, with well-developed commercial farming coexisting with 

smallholder and subsistence based production in the deep rural areas. There is, therefore, a very 

urgent need to transform this sector, whilst at the same time protecting and nurturing the existing 

commercial activities. The significance of a government entity like the Agribusiness Development 

Agency created to fast-track the advancement of Black agribusiness enterprises in the Province 

becomes apparent. 

Over the past few years ADA has been focusing mainly on primary production to improve capacity 

within the sector. However, ADA has always acknowledged and accepted the responsibility of 

unlocking agriculture along the whole value chain as dictated by its mandate. It is for this reason 

that ADA spent a major part of the year revisiting its strategy for the next five years. ADA recognises 

that a key lever to unlocking agriculture is creating a conducive environment within and outside 

government. ADA has begun a process of setting up systems and institutional mechanisms to 

accomplish this mammoth task. 

Ensuring a level playing field between small emerging and large established agribusiness enterprises 

is very important for reasons of both equity and economic efficiency. ADA's increased participation 

in regional structures that impact policy development will go a long way towards providing a 

platform for advocacy and collaborative engagement. 
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ADA hosted the World Food Programme Workshop and the Food and Agriculture Organisation of 

the United Nations (FAO) in the year under review. 

Partnerships are a fundamental driving force for increased agricultural investment. The year 2013/14 

saw ADA strengthening and consolidating its partnerships with National and Provincial departments, 

sister public entities and National as well as International organisations. We are particularly proud 

of our collaboration with Dalum College in Denmark which has resulted in the youth farmer 

development programme. ADA will be sending 36 youth to Denmark over a 3 year period for ten 

month training programme on piggery farming. This initiative is spearheaded by the South African 

Ambassador to Denmark and wil l  also incorporate an exchange programme. 

ADA is a fairly new organisation, but has made significant strides in changing the agricultural 

landscape in the Province. In 2013/14 financial year, ADA has amongst other things, embarked 

on a focussed livestock intensification programme including, the construction of 24 000 layer unit, 

the establishment of a beef abbatoir, development of a grain agrihub, 

The ADA is now marshalling a new strategic trajectory to develop and transform agribusiness in 

the new administrative cycle through the 5 year strategic plan. This is a very crucial process in the 

maturing phase of ADA as it would provide an opportunity to craft a unique identity that compliments 

rather than compete with other organisations in the Province. We look to ADA to ensure the 

transformation of the agribusiness sector and to turnaround ailing land reform farms in the Province. 

In this regard, ADA needs a robust well rounded cadre of officials that are ready to tackle the 

challenges that inhibit the thriving of the whole agricultural and agribusiness sector. It is for this 

reason that one of the key proposed programmes of ADA is institutional strengthening and capacity 

development. The need to put the farmer or agribusiness entrepreneur at the centre as envisaged 

by the new strategy cannot be overemphasised. The ADA is adopting an approach that guarantees 

the production of competent black agribusiness entrepreneurs through building an intensive 

knowledge and social capital base. 

The Board is at the forefront of this strategy and we are grateful to them for their visionary leadership. 

We look forward to the implementation of the new strategy and its impact on the agribusiness 

landscape and economic outlook of the Province. The management and staff of ADA are the 

pillars of this entity and their commitment to the achievement of the mandate and improved 

service delivery will go a long way towards taking this entity to new heights. We thank our stakeholders 

for their continued and unrivalled support in the journey to make this Province an agricultural hub. 

············�·······························

Mr Cyril Xaba(MPL) 

MEC for Department of Agriculture and Rural Development 
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06. StralRt]k 'lJvervuw

6.1. Vision 

A transformed, highly developed, sustainable and deracialised agribusiness sector in KwaZulu

Natal . 

6.2. Mission Statement 

To create an enabling environment aimed at growing the agricultural sector and improving market 

access for Black commercial farmers and agribusiness entrepreneurs, through intensifying land 

productivity and maximising value-adding opportunities, thus stimulating job creation and economic 

inclusion in a sustainable manner. 

6.3. Organisational Values and Principles 

The ADA is committed to excellence, transparency and accountability in delivering its work, 

conducting its business with its stakeholders and suppliers, responding to the needs of its constituency 

and caring for its employees. 

Our reputation and credibility are derived from the quality of our work, the recognition and support 

of the people with whom and for whom we work, and from our donors, staff and the public at 

large. Our reputation must be upheld by continually improving performance and effectiveness 

as an organization. We recognize that to maintain our reputation we must demonstrate our core 

principles and values from the highest levels of the organization. 

6.4. ADA Core Principles 

The principles underlying the work of ADA are those which support developmental practice on 

the one hand and those which underpin sustainable commercial endeavour on the hand. 

Holistic and integrated approaches which 
respond to clients needs for sustainable business practices 
working towards profitability. 

Establish partnerships for efficient service delivery 
and for enhanced market & sector dynamics. 

Maintaining the balance between efficiency 
and effectiveness for best results 

Maintaining and enhancing the natural resource base from

which our activities derive. 

Facilitation of opportunities which support new actors in the 
agricultural value chains in which we work. 
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6.5. ADA Core Values 

ADA staff and board hold dear the values which enable the organisation to function optimally in 

an operating environment which encourages creativity and continuous improvement: 

• A positive and progressive work ethic will be evident in our day to day operations. This includes

integrity, commitment, respect, accountability, striving for excellence and timeous response:

• Our operations and systems will facilitate and ensure the elements of good corporate governance

in the management of resources and general service delivery.

6.6. Strategic Goals and Objectives 

Increase income and employment in commercial agriculture by improving agricultural productivity 

and competitiveness of black commercial farmers and entrepreneurs. 

Provide business, technical, production andmarketing supportto black commercialfarmer 

Facilitate the provision and development of infrastructure for commercial agriculture production 

Leverage funding for development from government, the privatesector and donors 

Improve the knowledge and skills base of blackcommercial farmers 

Grow the value of agricultural output by improving the functioning of markets in the agricultural sector, 

facilitating investment and supporting enterprise development. 

Leverage funding for development from government, the private sector and donors 

Facilitate access to opportunities in the agribusiness value chain 

Link black commercial farmers to markets 

An effective and efficient administration that promotes sound corporate governance and responsive 

service delivery. 

Fully capacitated human resources able to deliver on the organisation's mandate 

Promote good governance and a legally sound organisation 

Programme sensitivity to extend opportunities for youth, women, the physically challenged 
and broader rural community. 

Sound and stringent financial management and control 

Implement ADA wide information and communication system 
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07. 'leqislati.veandothR.r MandalRs

The Agribusiness Development ADA derives its mandates from the following policy and legislative 

imperatives: 

• Cabinet Resolution No. 79 of 29 July 2009 authorizing the establishment of an entity to support

entrant commercial black farmers.

• The National Policy Governing the Comprehensive Agricultural Support Programme (CASP).

• Land Reform Policy Guidelines and the Department of Rural Development and Land Reform.

• Amended Deed of Trust for the KwaZulu-Natal Agricultural Development Trust (trading as the

Agribusiness Development ADA).

• Cabinet Resolution No. 245 of 11 November 2009 transferring the KwaZulu-Natal Development

Trust from the Department of Agriculture, Environmental Affairs and Rural Development to the

Department of Economic Development.

It is intended that ADA will be established under provincial legislation as a Schedule 3 Public Entity. 

Consequently, the extent and nature of these mandates may be changed following the promulgation 

of the legislation establishing ADA. 

Further to the above, ADA is guided by the following legislation in implementing its mandate. 

• Constitution of the Republic of South Africa, 1996 Act 108 of 1996

• Public Finance Management Act, 1999 Act 1 of 1999

• National Treasury Regulations Gazette 23463

• Labour Relations Act, 1995 Act 66 of 1995

• Promotion of Access to Information Act, 2000 Act 2 of 2000

• Employment Equity Act, 1998 Act 55 of 1998

• Promotion of Administrative Justice Act 3 of 2000

• Basic Conditions of Employment Act, 1997 Act 75 of 1997

• Companies Act No. 3 of 2011

• Occupational Health and Safety Act, 1993 Act 85 of 1999

• Equality and Prevention of Unfair Discrimination Act 4 of 20
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08. 91'091 '8'091'/l'D M'EM'B'f'IIS

Mr Zakhele Nyuswa is the 

s e n i o r  m a n a g e r :  

CooperativeGovernance. 

He represents the MEC on 

the board, in terms of the 

deed of trust. 

Mr Nyuswa has served in 

various leadership positions 

from is tertiary education 

days to union work after 

joining the working world. 

Having served as the 

president of the convocation 

of ML sultan Technikon (now 

DUT), Mr. Nyuswa has also 

been a member of the 

council at DUT (Durban 

university of technology). 

Mr Nyuswa has a diploma 

and a B.tech degree in 

journalism and has served in 

various capacities as a 

communication practitioner. 

He also represents the MEC 

on the Mjindi Pty Ltd, and 

Ezemvelo KZN Wildlife 

Boards. 

Dr Dladla, an agricultural 

economist, has played a 

pivotal role in building the 

countryfs human capital 

within agribusiness, in both 

the public and private 

sectors. His passion to 

develop farmers ii especially 

young ones ii has exposed 

him to multiple agricultural

related strategies and 

training in many countries 

abroad. 

He founded the Zakhe 

Agricultural College: the first 

Private/independent School 

that produces practically 

oriented young tamers. 

The co-founder of the 

A g r i c u l t u r a l  a n d  

environmental Practitioners 

associations, Mr Dlala also 

runs Richdicta Agribusiness 

Development Services 

whose duties are to 

educate, train and create 

agribusiness opportunities for 

developing farmers. 

He is a board member for 

the Baynesfield estate, one 

of the biggest commercial 

famers in the province. 
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Dr Mbathafs educational 

qualifications are as follows: 

• B.A. Social Work Honours -

University of Zululand

• Master of Social Sciences 

at University of South Africa 

• Master of City Planning at 

Massachusetts Institute of 

Technology 

• PHD in Social Welfare Policy 

at Brandeis University

• Post Doctoral Studies on 

Social and Economic Policies 

at University of Michigan. 

Dr Mbatha is the chairperson 

of the Board. She has served 

in the previous Board of the 

ADA since its inception in 

2010. She worked for the 

Department of Justice in 

South Africa; the Stolberg 

Theological School in 

Pietersbug (Polokwane) the 

United Nations Centre for 

Regional Development 

(Japan), the United States 

Agency for International 

D e v e l o p m e n t  t h e  

Canadian International 

Development Research 

Centre, the Centre for 

Development Research and 

Facilitation and lnkezo Land 

Company. Some of the 

boards she has served are 

H e i f e r  In t e r n a t i o n a l  

( C h a i r p e r s o n )  a n d  

lngonyama Trust. 

Dr Mbatha brings to the 

Board, her understanding of 

the challenges facing the 

beneficiaries of land reform; 

empowerment approaches 

to promoting local social 

development; processes 

and procedures for bridging 

t h e  g a p  b e t w e e n  

policies/programmes and 

implementation and her 

understanding of the donor 

funding dynamics. 

Dr Ngidi has a PhD in Poultry 

Science and Masters Degree 

in Dairy Science from The 

Ohio State University, USA. 

He is also in possession of a 

Bachelor of Science in 

Agriculture from Berea 

College, Kentucky, USA, and 

a diploma in Animal Health 

and Extension from Owen 

S i t h o l e  C o l l e g e  o f  

Agriculture, Empangeni. 

He is  a special ist  in 

agribusiness and rural 

development, has more 

than 15 yearsf experience in 

f a c i l i t a t i o n  of r u r a l  

development, agricultural 

extension,  agriculture 

training, and agribusiness 

development. He has 

worked for the government 

as an animal health officer 

and for the institute of 

Natural Resources, a rural 

development NGO, as a 

development specialist and 

trainer. 

Dr Ngidi, who has worked for 

Rainbow Farms, has also 

served on the board of 

UmAfrica newspaper and 

was a committee member 

of the BP Agricultural and 

R u r a l  D e v e l o p m e n t  

Scholarship. 

Advocate Nirghin possesses 

a BA LLB degree from 

university of natal (now 

University of Kwazulu-Natal) 

and has been a member of 

the society of advocates, 

P ietermar i t zburg Bar ,  

Kwazulu-Natal, since 2007. 

He specializes in general civil 

litigation, land law and 

property law. 

Advocate Nirghin was a 

project coordinator at the 

C o m m i s s i o n  on t h e  

Restitution o f  Land Rights: 

Development of Land Affairs. 

He also served as a 

communications officer at 

the Office of the Premier, 

Kwazulu-Natal. 

An active member of 

society, advocate Nirghin 

has held several leadership 

positions. These include 

being president of Midlands 

Hindu Society, chairman of 

MHS youth Council and 

chairman of South African 

Hindu Maha Saba Youth 

Council. He was also elected 

chairman of the national 

Hindu Youth Federation as 

well as the chairman of the 

Hindu Students Associations. 
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Mr Ngcobo has a bachelor 
of business administration 
from the University of 
KwaZulu-Natal and a N5 

Mechanical Engineering 
qualification from Swinton 
Technical College. On top 
of these, he collected a 
Monitoring and Evaluation 
Certificate from the University 
of Steeplebush. He is  
cur rent ly pursuing a 
postgraduate diploma in 
Forensic Investigation and 
Criminal Justice. 

Mr Ngcobo, a board 
member of the Mjindi 
farming, is also the chairman 
of the infrastructure and 
service delivery portfolio as 
well as a member of finance 
and human resources 
portfolio. He is also the interim 
c h a i r m a n  o f  t h e  
Mkhanyakude Dis t r ict  
Municipalityfs development 
and planning commission, 
he also serves as the 
chairman of the Jozini 
Municipality audit and 
p e r f o r m a n c e  a u d i t  
committees. 

Ms Njabulo Zwane is the 
Group General Manager for 
the Agriculture Development 
at  l l l o v o  Sugar  LT D .  
Throughout her working 
career she has culminated 
over 25 year' s experience 
across the NGO's, Farmer 
Support Organisations,Higher 
Education, Agriculture 
Research and the South 
African Public Service serving 
as Director, Chief Director, 
Deputy Director-General. 
Agriculture Counsellor, 
Director General where she 
served for 13 years in the 
department of Agriculture 
Fisheries and Forestry in 
various senior roles. 

S h e  h o l d s  a n  MS c 
Agricultural Science and a 
Post Graduate Diploma in 
Agricultural Science degree, 
both from the University 
College of Wales, UK. In 
addition, she had a Bachelor 
of Science (Botany and 
Chemistry) from the University 
Of Dar es Salaam, Tanzania, 
a post Graduate Diploma in 
A d v a n c e  P r o j e c t  
Management from the 
Graduate School of Business 
Leadership (UNISA) and 
attended various leadership 
and Cooperate governance 
training. 

S h e  g a i n e d  v a r i o u s  
b e n e f i c i a l  w o r k i n g  
r e l a t i o n s h i p s  w i t h i n  
organisations including the 
UN Food and Agriculture 
agencies such as the Food 
and Agriculture Organization 
(FAO) International Fund for 
Agriculture Development 
(IFAD), and the World Food 
Programme WFP ,the African 
Union Commission for  
Agriculture and Rural 
Development in spear 
heading the Comprehensive 
A f r i c a  A g r i c u l t u r e  
Programme (CAADP) at the 
regional level working closely 
with Southern Afr ican 
Development Community 
(SADC), the Nepad Planning 
and Coordinating Agency 
(NPCA) and the Nepad 
Business Foundation (NBF). 
These networks will enhance 
t h e  A g r i c u l t u r e
Development Agencyfs  
m i s s i o n  t o  i m p r o v e  
cooperation at both national 
and regional level. 

Mr Don Mkhwanazi was born 

in Durban. He is regarded as 

the father of Black Economic 

Empowerment in many 

quarters. He coined and 

popularized the famous 

term, Black Economic 

Empowerment (BEE), long 

before it was adopted by 

the new South African 

government as its economic 

mantra. Mr Mkhwanazi, a 

Harvard Fellow and Shell 

overseas scholar who boasts 

a Bachelor of Administration, 

M a s t e r  o f  B u s i n e s s  

A d m i n i s t r a t i o n ,  P o s t  

Graduate Diploma i n  

M a r k e t i n g ,  G r aduate  

Diploma in Company 

Direction, is  currently studying 

for his Doctorate in Business 

Administration. 

A b u s i n e s s m a n ,  

entrepreneur, strategist and 

transformation activist of 

acclaim. He spent 12 years 

in corporate South Africa 

working for multinationals 

until the entrepreneurial bug 

engulfed him. He was 

P r e s i d e n t  of B l a c k  

Management Forum (BMF) 

from 1986 to 1991. 

He is the chairman of the 

following Boards: GIBB 

Holdings, Southern African 

Shipyards, Ocean Masters 

, Acetowise and Board 

Member of Alexkor ,Moses 

Kotane Institute, and Royal 

Household Board of Trust. He 

is a member of the 

Presidential Advisory Council 
on BBBEE. 

Mrs Dabideen serves in two 
committees of the ADA 
Board i.e. the Human 
R e s o u r c e s  a n d
Remuneration Committee 
and Projects and Finance 
Committee.Her qualifications 
are as follows: 

B.Proc - University of Durban 
Westville (now known as the 
University of KwaZulu-Natal) 
Diploma in Insolvency Law -
University of Pretoria 
Advanced Diploma in 
Insolvency Law and Litigation 
- University of Pretoria
Diploma in Business Resque 
- University of South Africa 

Mrs Dabideen has been 
serving as an attorney in 
Durban for the past 20 years. 
She was appointed to the 
KwaZulu-Natal  Rental  
Housing Tribunal in  2005 and 
was appointed as Deputy 
Chair in 200 8. She has 
extensive experience in 
Insolvency Law and is a 
Liquidator on the Master of 
the High Courtfs Insolvency 
Panel where she is regularly 
involved in the liquidation of 
corporate entities. 

Mrs Dabideen is a member 
of the Board of Ezemvelo KZN 
Wildlife where she chairs the 
F inance and Business 
Operations Committee. She 
i s  an i n t e r n a t i o n a l ly 
accredited commercial 
mediator with the Alternative 
Dispute Resolution (ADR) 
(United Kingdom). She also 
serves in the KwaZulu-Natal 
Municipal Bids Appeal 
Tribunal in resolving disputed 
tenders within the province. 
There is no doubt that the 
ADA will benefit from the 
legal expertise of Mrs 
Dabideen who will help 
ensure that its operations 
remain within its legal 
framework. 

Mr Ndlela holds the following 
educational qualifications: 
Bachelor of Arts (University of 
Cape Town) 
Honours in Industrial Relations 
(University of Natal, now 
University of KwaZulu-Natal) 
Certificate in Management 
Development Programme 
(University of Pretoria) 
Certif icate on Project 
Management (University of 
Pretoria) 

He is a businessman with 
diverse business interests in 
property development, 
financial service and mining. 
He is also highly experienced 
in land reform and project 
structuring and finance. 

Mr Ndlela is a healthcare 
broker, and is registered with 
the Financial Services Board. 
He brings to the ADA his vast 
exp e r i e n c e  o n  l a n d  
distribution and land reform. 
He also worked for the Land 
B a n k  where h e  was 
responsible for the financing 
of emerging markets. He is 
actively involved in the 
private sector and will assist 
the ADA in foster ing 
partnerships within that 
sector. Mr Ndlela chairs the 
Agencyfs Human Resources 
a n d  R e m u n e r a t i o n  

Committee. 
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ACTING COO 
MS R. DLAMINI 

HEAD: 
LEGAL & CORPORATE SERVICES 

MR F. MBULI 
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ACTING CEO 
DR T. MKHABELA 

CFO 
MRS T. NGWENYA 

SPECIALIST: 
PLANNING, MONITORING 

& EVALUATION 
MS P. VI LA KAZI 
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09. 'Report by the Chairperson

Dr M Mbatha 
Chairperson of the Board 

The relocation of the ADA from the Department of Economic Development, Tourism & Environmental 

Affairs (EDTEA) to the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development (DARD) was supported 

by the Board of Trustees and the ADA community respectively. However, the shift resulted in major 

decisions that had to be taken in order to enable the organisation to progress. These included: 

• The tabling of the ADA legislation at the Legislature; and

• The delay in the appointment of the new Board of Trustees

In terms of progress, we are very pleased that the Board of Trustees has been appointed and that 

the legislation making process is moving towards finalisation. Furthermore, another significant 

development was that DARD supported Medium Term Expenditure Framework (MTEF) planning 

by the ADA which allowed us to plan the implementation of projects in a 3-year cycle. With regard 

to the Board of Trustees, we are pleased to report that they have been duly appointed 

During the financial year under discussion, the CEO and the CFO respectively, resigned. This posed 

some challenges. However, the Board appointed an acting CEO, CFO and COO, who were 

suitably qualified to take on these responsibilities. The organisation functioned smoothly. 

2013/14 Performance Highlights 

The following are some of the major achievements made in 2013/14. 

• The first fully automated 24 000 layer unit at Albert Falls in the Umgungundlovu district

commenced its operations. To the best of the ADAfs knowledge, this is the first of its kind

to be owned by a black emerging farmer in KwaZulu-Natal. The first batch of 40 000 eggs 

was collected by an off-taker. The overall cost of the project was R4.5million. 

• The ADA established three poultry structures with a capacity of 750 chickens each at Pathan

Poultry and Sugarcane Farm in the Pietermaritzburg area. The farm now employs 14

permanent and 6 seasonal employees

L 



The first ADA assisted beef abattoir was constructed in lxopo and opened its doors in November 

2013. In this project the ADA with its R6million contribution, was able to coordinate multiple funding 

sources, demonstrating the level of success that can be achieved if the entity can be used as a 

conduit of funds from various funders. Through the assistance of the ADA, the Nkunzana Trust Farm 

in Pongola along the Mkhuze River, a land restitution project, entered into the formal vegetable 

market. It became one of the few black farms to enter into the commercial sector. The ADA has, 

amongst other things, installed irrigation, procured tractors and other implements, fenced and 

refurbished farm dwellings and procured vegetable production inputs. The ADA was 

• successful in linking this farm to markets through a partnership with Just Veggies, a private

sector partner processing fresh produce at Coronation in Vryheid. The ADA, to date, has

supported this initiative with R9.5million. 

• The Ubumbano Farmers[ Cooperative in Weenen in uThukela District continues to flourish due

to the ADAis interventions. The ADA purchased a chicory processing plant for the beneficiaries, 

a drier and roaster, production inputs, tractors and other implements. Furthermore, two 

managers were placed at the project to ensure the smooth running of the business as well 

as to provide mentorship and skills transfer. To date about R15million has been invested in 

the project 

• The ADA has also been successful in establishing a dairy cluster in the Kokstad/Underberg

area with three successful black-owned dairy operations and these are MaAnde Investment,

Copperfield and Makhoba in Swartberg. 

Future Outlook 

With global food demand expected to be more than double by 2050, driven largely by the rising 

middle class, there are unprecedented opportunities for the agricultural sector. The ADA, in 

particular, is challenged to position itself for this mammoth task of ensuring that agriculture and 

agribusiness in KwaZulu-Natal is productive and competitive. The Board is leading a rigorous 

strategic planning process which is characterised by a shift in strategic thinking and direction. We 

believe that the new strategic direction will go a long way towards increasing the footprint of the 

ADA throughout the Province. 

Valuing and Acknowledging our People 

The strength of the ADA is trained, competent, committed staff, and enthusiastic, cooperative 

members of the community. We are encouraged by the work of the personnel of the ADA and 

their valued contribution throughout 2013/2014. We would like to thank the outgoing members of 

Board of Trustees for their sterling contribution in laying a good foundation for building this growing 

organisation. Furthermore, we welcome the new members of Board of Trustees whose term ends 

in 2016, and we are confident that they wil l  take this entity to new heights. 

Dr M. S. Mbatha 

Chairperson of the Board of Trustees 
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Dr T. Mkhabela 

Acting Chief Executive Officer 

10. 'Overview by the Chief 'fXfflllhte 'l){ftcU

The ADA started 2013/14 with a very positive outlook and bold plans to consolidate the achievements 

of the few years of existence of the entity. ADA saw this year as a maturing phase in line with the 

business development curve of growing organisations like ours. It was a period where we saw ADA 

as having achieved traction that would propel it higher because of the lessons learnt over the 

establishment phase. However, 2013/14 was filled with a number of unexpected changes both 

positive and negative which had a major impact on its performance. These will be elaborated on 

in the body of this report. 

The ADA is however, very proud of the impact that it is having in improving the performance of 

agriculture in the Province through its interventions in the livestock and crop production sector. We 

are beginning to realise the mandate of creating agribusiness entrepreneurs in the Province as will 

be demonstrated in this report. We also acknowledge that there is still a long way to go before 

this is fully realised as ADA still grapples with issues of sustainable funding. 

Although ADA was created to be conduit of funds from different department towards assisting 

black commercial farmers, governments allocation has been very erratic. ADA offers comprehensive 

support ranging from capacity building, technical support, on and off farm infrastructure and input 

supports and enterprise development. However, currently, it is very difficult to adhere to fully 

supporting the farmers and to unlock backward and forward linkages in the agricultural food 

chains. 

It is for this reason that ADA is piloting a radical five year strategy that is directed towards making 

it an important player in unleashing agribusiness potential in the Province. It is recognised that the 

ADA cannot change the agribusiness landscape through farm by farm interventions that are not 

catalytic. ADA wants to create a conducive and enabling environment for agribusiness to thrive 

in the Province through a programmatic approach and adopting business models that have 

maximum impact and accrue to the development of the country. 
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The year 2013/ 14 has been a very productive year, both in the operations and administrative wings 

of the entity. The move to the Department of Agriculture and Rural Development created space 

for the entity to negotiate a favourable financing strategy of ADA. The Board was able to approve 

a number of policies to improve the functioning of the entity. The project section was able to use 

lessons learnt in the previous years of implementation to design very effective and efficient models 

of project management that are beginning to yield desired impact. 

In this regard, firstly, I would like to extend my sincere gratitude to the Board for their continued 

support and leadership. Secondly, the ADA staff and management who have been working very 

hard to ensure the realisation of the mandate. Lastly, we recognise that we cannot achieve this 

mandate alone but we rely on the guidance and constructive leadership by our shareholder, the 

partnerships established with different stakeholders which transcends the borders of the country 

as well as our beneficiaries. We appreciate their contribution to building this important vehicle of 

agribusiness development in the Province. 

Dr Thulasizwe Mkhabela 

Acting CEO 
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01. Stawnent <t( 'Respo-nsibilihj fo-r 'Performance 'lnfo-rmatio-n fo-r the year ended 31 March 201'1

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for the preparation of the ADAs performance information 

and for the judgements made in this information. 

The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for establishing, and implementing a system of internal 

control designed to provide reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of performance 

information. 

In my opinion, the performance information fairly reflects the actual achievements against planned 

objectives, indicators and targets as per the strategic and annual performance plan of ADA for 

the financial year ended 31 March 2014. 

The Agribusiness Development Agency's performance information for the year ended 31 March 

2014 has been examined by the external auditors and their report is presented on page 62 to 66. 

The performance information of the ADA set out on page 19 to 36 was approved by the Board. 

Dr Thulasizwe Mkhabela 

Acting Chief Executive Officer 
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02. fi:ludihtr's 'Report 'Pred£1£rmined 'Objedi.ves

2.1. The Auditor- General perfomed proceedures to optain evidence about the usefulness 

and liabitity of the information in the annual report on predetermined objectives. 

2.2. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the 

overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. The usefulness of information in the annual report 

on predetermined objectives relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the 

National Treasury is annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is 

consistent with the planned objectives. The usefulness of information further relates to 

whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, 

measurable and time bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework 

for managing programme performance information. The reliability of the information in 

respect of the selected programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects 

the facts (i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 

2.3. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information 

for capacity building and mantorship, technical supports and on and off farm infrastructure 

03. 'Overvhw o(tlwfi:lgribuswss rrweIDpmmtfi:lgenn/s 'Per(ormnnce

3.1. Service Delivery Environment 

External Environment 

KwaZulu Natal (KZN) is a province with rich potential, covering over 6.5 million ha of land, according 

to the Provincial growth and Development Plan, 13% of total land area in KZN is high potential 

agricultural land. Consisting of 82% of grazing land and 1.17 million of arable land and as a result, 

ADA has worked towards unlocking much of the provinces latent potential. As per the Crops and 

Markets, 4th quarter 2013, volume 94, no 985; the gross farm income increased by 8,6% which 

amounts to Rl 82 966 million over a period of 2013. The amount entails of incomes from field crops, 

horticultural products and animal products. 

The income from field crops increased by R2 744 million which is 7.3% and amounted to R49 287 

million. The income from sunflower seed increased by 17,6%, sugarcane by 14,5% and tobacco 

by 8,4%, while the income from maize and wheat decreased slightly by 0, 1 %. The income from 

horticultural products rose by R5 680 million or 13,5% and amounted to R47 806 million. The gross 

income of farmers from deciduous and other fruit increased by 23,3%, citrus fruit by 21,0%, vegetables 

by 8,2% and viticulture by 5,2%, while the income from subtropical fruit decreased by 2,0%. Income 

from animal products showed an increase of R6 058 which is 7,4% and amounted to R87 437 million. 

This is mainly as a result of the increases in incomes from poultry meat (11,3%), milk (9,9%), sheep 

s laughtered (7,7%), eggs (6,8%) and catt le and calves s laughtered (2,0%).  
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External Environment ( continued) 

Expenditure on intermediate goods and services increased by 8,9%, from R95 765 million in 2012 

to R 104 260 million in 2013. Expenditure on farm feeds remained the biggest expenditure item, 

accounting for 20,9%, followed by fuel (14,1%), farm services (12,9%), maintenance and repairs 

(11,3%), seed and plants (9,5%), animal health and crop protection (8,6%), packing material (7,6%), 

fertilisers (6,2%) and building and fencing material (3,7%). Expenditure on seed and plants increased 

by 12,0%, maintenance and repairs by 11,7%, packing material by 9,8%, building and fencing by 

9, 1 %, animal health and crop protection by 9,0%, farm feeds by 8,2%, fuel by 7,3%, farm services 

by 6,8% and fertilisers by 6, 1 %. 

On regular terms, prices received by farmers for their products increased by 4,0%. 
The weighted average price of field crops increased by 1 ,0%, because of increases in the prices 

of winter grains (19,1%), dry beans (15,4%), tobacco (13,8%), hay (11,0%) and oilseeds (5,2%). The 

prices of summer grain, cotton and sugarcane decreased by 5,6%, 1,6% and 0,4% respectively. 

Prices of horticultural products increased by 7,7%. Prices of fruit, vegetables and viticulture products 

rose by 8,9%, 6,5% and 6,2 % respectively. The weighted average price of animal products increased 

by 4,4%. Prices of pastoral products increased by 13,8%, dairy products by 8,6% and poultry meat 

by 6,6%, whereas the prices of slaughtered stock decreased by 1 ,8%. The prices paid for farming 

requisites, including machinery and implements, material for fixed improvements as well as 

intermediate goods, ascended by 7, 1%, compared to 14,5% in the previous year. Prices paid for 

tractors increased by 10,8%, seeds by 10,5%, feeds and packing material by 7, 1 % each, animal 

health and crop protection by 6,8%, building material by 6,5%, fuel by 6,4%, trucks by 6,3%, 

maintenance and repairs and fertilisers by 5,9% each, and fencing material by 5,3%. The 4,0% 

increase in prices received compared to the 7, 1 % increase in prices paid by farmers resulted in 

the weakening of the domestic terms of trade by 2, 9%. 

Internal Environment 

The year 2013/14 was characterised by a number of changes in the internal environment which 

had a potential of creating instability, but quick interventions by the ADA management and Board 

resulted in minimal disruptions to the operations of the entity. Firstly, the financial year began with 

the retirement of the CEO who had been instrumental in shaping the entity . The Chief Operations 

Officer was then tasked with acting in this position to ensure seamless continuation to the functioning 

of the entity. The acting CEO has aptly led this entity for the period of a year. Furthermore, the 

Chief Financial Officer resigned shortly after the retirement of the CEO. ADA swiftly appointed an 

acting CFO within the organisation who later assumed this position after being appointed. As a 

result of this rapid response by ADA, the entity was able to get an unqualified audit. 

The term of the Board of Trustees expired during this period and the MEC extended its period. By 

the end of the financial year, a new Board of Trustees had been appointed. Furthermore, new 

members were appointed to the ancillary Board Committees like the Audit Committee and the 

Human Resources and Development Committee. The new Board also established a new committee 

called the Project and Finance Committee. This committee is made of the members of the Board 

and is tasked with overseeing project management and implementation. 
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PROGRAMME 1: FINANCE AND ADMINISTRATION 

Purpose 

To ensure good governance and cost effective management and administration. Its main thrusts 

are the provision of finance, office management, information technology, monitoring and 

evaluation and legal services. 

Strategic Objectives 

• A fully capacitated human resources able to deliver on its mandate.

• Sound and Stringent financial management and control.

• Build the ADA brand and reputation.

Key Perfomance lndictator, Planned Targets and Actual Achievment 

HR Strategy approved by 

Board 

Project Management and 

Information System 

Implemented 

IT Governance Framework 

Strategy approved by Board 

Business Continuity strategy 

approved by Board 

Clean annual audit opinion 

Supply Chain Strategy 

approved by Board 

Packaged readiness tools for 

new strategic trajectory 

developed and approved by 

board 

Actual performance against targets 

Target Actual 

Board Approval by The HR strategy draft has been 

July 2013 developed and submitted to the 

HR Committee and currently 

being discussed at the Board 

level 

Initial roll out by Procurement process was 

December 2013 finalised but could not attract 

relevant service providers 

Approval by July The draft strategy has been 

2013 developed and awaiting Board 

approval 

Board Approval by This project was withdrawn 

March 2014 

Clean annual Audit Quarterly AFS were done and 

tabled at the board meeting in 

February 2014. 

Board approval of Approved in Feb 2014 

SCM Strategy by 

August 2013 

Board approval in The project was withdrawn 

December 2013 

Inability to find a suitable service provider 

stalled procurement process 

All the providers that bided were not suitable 

and process is being restarted 

Funding was secured late and also the board 

did not sit for a while after it had been 

drafted 

There was no budget for this project 

N/A 

N/A 

There was a change in the emphasis of the 

strategy of ADA resulting in this project 

being withdrawn 
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HIGHLIGHTS AND ACHIEVEMENTS 

During the 2013/2014 financial year, the Unit acquired additional office accommodation to address 

the shortage of space. Furthermore, they negotiated a reduced rental rate with the landlord. The 

new lease agreement provides for the inclusion of free building maintenance which result in a 

financial saving for the organisation. 

The unit acquired additional vehicles in order to address the shortage of transport experienced 

by projects staff when seeking to visit projects. This also necessitated the review of the vehicle fleet 

management policy to ensure that it is in line with the operations of ADA and continues to safeguard 

these valuable assets of the organization, which are both the vehicles and employees. The reviewed 

policy was approved by the Board in 2013. 

Also, the unit facilitated the contract with Minolta for the supply and maintenance of six (6) 

photocopying machines that included high volume colour printer for the registry office in order 

to have one central point for high volume printing. This initiative went a long way in addressing 

problems that had been the order of the day for SCM staff in terms of printing bid documents for 

projects tenders. 

Lastly, the unit came up with a suitable telephone system to accommodate all the employees of 

ADA as the old one could no longer service all the employees. 

In 2014/2015 financial year, Office Management will focus on improving the facilities of the 

organization by providing the meeting room that will accommodate all the employees of the 

organization. Further, conducting a feasibility study to investigate ways of reducing high rental 

costs of office accommodation is also a key priority going forward. 

Despite all the challenges experienced in the 2013/2014 financial year, the unit still remains positive 

and will continue to strive to provide better and efficient service to other sections of the organization 

and to our external clients. 
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In 2013/14 the Marketing and Communications Unit began a very intensive process of rolling out 

the organisations Integrated Marketing and Communications Strategy (IMC) through the following 

key focus area; 

• Brand strategy

• Stakeholder engagement

• Corporate Social Investment

• Events Management

• Media Relations

Brand Strategy 

The organisation is very proud of its new official news magazine named Qhakaza, an lsiZulu word 

meaning bloom, which was launched in May 2013. This has given us a platform to share not only 

the successes of ADA, but also key developments in the agribusiness industry. This magazine has 

been well received by internal stakeholders, external stakeholders and civil society of KwaZulu

Natal, with mostly positive comments. Furthermore, publications were produced in collaboration 

with PM&E depicts the brand essence of the Agency. A corporate video was produced and the 

website revamped. 

There has been increased compliance by both internal and external stakeholders in the application 

of the ADA Corporate Identity (Cl). This relates to the brand image and enhancement; how the 

brand should be managed visually, verbally, behaviourally and culturally across all the spheres 

of ADA activities; and how the service providers use ADA's Cl. 

Stakeholder Engagement 

Stakeholder engagement refers to a road map to meaningful and productive relationships. 

Marketing and Communications represent the Agency at the Intra-departmental Communicators 

Forum, which comprises of entities that report to DARO, these are KZN Wildlife and UMjindi Farm. 

The forum is aimed at providing an open platform for synergies and discussion of transversal 

communication issues. 

We also participated and continually participate the KZN Provincial Stakeholders Forum, which 

was established to jointly facilitate, align processes, and share best practices and expertise among 

stakeholders spectrum. Though each stakeholder drives its own programme; the forum agrees 

that an entity may request assistance or partnership for logistical or other support including 

technical/subject matter expertise. 
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We also indentified formerly Lonrho Group, now Ntonga Group as a strategic partner to collaborate 

with in the following: 

• Commercialisation and economic model for irrigation scheme

• Establishment of the Agri-Hubs in Umkhanyakude District

• Establishment of processing plant and export at IRDZ

• Training of ADA beneficiaries and other commercial farmers in conjuction with Owen Sithole and
DARD

Corporate Social Investment 

On the 30 May 2014 the Agency participated in a Cell C Take a Girl Child to Work Day by hosting 

30 learners from Zamazulu and Fundokuhle Secondary Schools located in lmbali Township. 

The aim was to enlighten the young girls about career opportunities and entrepreneurship in the 

agricultural and agribusiness sector; also to change the mindset the youth has toward the agricultural 

sector. The Agency has also acquired an overall score of Level 4 on BBBEE compliance, part of 

which 15 points was obtained from CSI involvement. 

The IT Unit achieved the following during the year under review; 

• Implemented the Virtual Private Network (VPN) which will assist ADA to access IT services outside
the office. In order to ensure that ADA can recover data during any disaster we have managed
to implement Disaster Recovery Plan with an offsite storage that replicate data daily.

• Developed ICT Governance Framework which institutionalizes corporate governance of ICT
as an integral part of corporate governance, within the Agribusiness Development Agency
(ADA).

• Enhanced the security of data circulation within Board Members, and IT has implemented
BoardWorks which is a real-time access to electronic Board Books.
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PROGRAMME 2: CAPACITY BUILDING 

Purpose 

To ensure that black commercial farmers are appropriately skilled. 

Strategic Objectives 

Improve the knowledge and skills base of black commercial farmers. 

Key Perfomance, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements 

Key Result 

I

Pe�rmance

� 

% 

I 

Reason for Variance 
Achieved 

Area Indicator 

Capacity Number of so 155 310% Intake on training with 

building people trained SASA on tractor driving 

and care increased 

because of improved 

capacity within SASA 

Number of 14 9 64% DEDT funding for 

mentorship capacity building was 

relationships withdrawn 

established 

Highlights and Achievements 

The capacity building programme of ADA has 2 key components namely; training of farmers on 

production and financial management skills and establishment of mentorship relationships. The 

first step that ADA engages in before training is assessment of the farmers training needs to ensure 

that the output of the capacity building is aligned with the needs of the client. In the financial year 

under review we have recorded some achievements in this programme, of which are more 

respectable considering the fact that the capacity building manager who will focus solely in this 

programme has not yet been appointed. ADA has trained a total of 155 farmers in both production 

and financial management skills. Most of the training took place at South African Sugar Association 

(SASA) on tractor driving and care. As a result of a mentorship programme in which a management 

company is placed on a farm, the level of production and extent of productivity improved 

dramatically in the farms where mentors were placed. ADA established 9 mentorship relationships 

against the 14 that was planned. ADA had planned to implement its mentorship programme in 

14 projects but was hindered by the withdrawal of the Department of Economic Development 

and Tourism (DEDT) funding for this programme. 

Another key achievement in 2013/14 is a partnership between ADA and Dalum College of 

Agribusiness in Odense, Denmark. This collaboration is geared towards providing a critical mass 

of appropriately skilled personnel in the sector. ADA had started a process of recruiting and 

shortlisting 12 youth livestock farmers to undergo intensive training in modern agricultural and 

agribusiness production in Denmark in September 2014. This training will take 10 months and it is 

planned that the trainees would be absorbed in the sector through further assistance by ADA to 

start up their own operations. 
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PROGRAMME 3: TECHNICAL SUPPORT 

Purpose 

To provide business, technical, production, marketing and enterprise development support to 
black commercial farmers and enterprises in agriculture. 

Strategic Objectives 

Provide business, technical, production and marketing support to black commercial farmers. 

Key Perfomance, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements 

Key Result 
I 

Perfomance �%Achieved Reason for variance 
Area lndicatior 

Provide Number of farm 20 155 15% ADA given wrong property 
business, plans and/ descriptions resulting in delays 
technical, business plans in doing planned business 
production developed 

plans at Besters 
and 

marketing 
Number of 14 18 128% The legislative requirements 

support to 

black 
engineering at Cowboy Abattoirs resulted 

commercial 
reports in increased engineering 

framers 
completed 

reports 

Number of 3 2 66% DEDT funding for technical 

feasibility studies support was withdrawn 

completed 

Highlights and Achievements 

Technical support is generally defined as a form of assistance towards the stability of any particular 
production. Technical support is essential to the development of any project; hence ADA has 
prioritized as one of its key programmes. Pursuing such support requires research, technical 
knowledge (acquired from routine trainings), and collaboration for ensuring the service is properly 
set up and effectively used. It is provided to add value to the project in various ways ranging from 
commodity specific support relating to the actual production to business management and 
marketing support. This technical support is on-farm, practical and over a sustained period, resulting 
in the entrant black farmer having the technical production and management expertise that 
enables the farmer to be competit ive in the global agricultural economy. 

In this regard, ADA provides a range of services as defined above according to the requirements 
of the project. A major part of the technical support goes to engineering support due to the fact 
that a large percentage of the budget is for infrastructure development. Following the transfer 
of ADA to DARD in 2013/ 14, the budget for technical support did not move with this function. 
However, ADA continued to give this much required support besides lack of budget. In this regard 
the fol lowing achievements were recorded for the 2013/14 f inancial year; 
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• 2 business plans

• 18 engineering reports

• 3 feasibility studies

The current situation is that as the ADA programmes stand, the work is highly resource intensive 

(labour, management and capital) and the focus is mainly on primary production activities. It is 

recognized that in order to scale up impact (and to assist in meeting provincial targets), the ADA 

will move towards enterprise development/investment facilitation which will maximise impact. This 

shift will not exclude the primary production focus as this remains an essential element of the 

requirements in the sector. 

Lastly, ADA started a process of organising a benchmarking tour to Japan through the assistance 

of the Japanese International Cooperation Agency(JICA) to study best practice on implementing 

successful agrihub model. This is in preparation of the undertaking to implement agrihubs throughout 

the Province starting with grain agri-hubs in Amajuba and Vryheid District municipalities. 
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Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Key Result Perfomance       Actual Performance Against Targets   % Archieved Reason for  variance

 Area Indicatior            Target Actual



Key Performance Indicators, Planned Targets and Actual Achievements

Key Result Perfomance       Actual Performance Against Targets   % Archieved Reason for  variance

 Area Indicatior            Target Actual



Highlights and Achievements ( continued) 

ADA's interventions at the Chicory Project are continuously fruitful. In this project, 56.1 ha of chicory 

were planted in the financial year under review against the 30ha that was initially planned. This 

achievement is as a result of the increase demand for chicory from Nestle and the conditions were 

conducive to increase hectares planted for chicory. 

ADA has also managed to plant a total of 181 .82ha of vegetables; these hectors were mainly from 

Nkunzana/ Just Veggies joint Venture and Syathuthuka Trust under Middelrus. Furthermore, ADA 

established 5 poultry units namely; Makhalempongo poultry (2 houses units), Wagnbietjies and 

Pathan poultry (2 houses units). 

A total of 24ha of pasture was planted. This is as a result of ADA changing its approach by allowing 

beneficiaries to plant for themselves thus increasing the extent of pasture planted . We have also 

managed to install a total of 188ha of irrigation infrastructure with 1 00ha currently underway and 

90% completed at Empangisweni Trust. There is a continuing and expanding demand for organic 

essential oils in the International market. Furthermore, essential oils are easy for the small scale 

farmers to produce. In this regard, ADA started this organic essential oils programme at lnkandla, 

Empangisweni and Sizuzimpilo to benefit our farmers from this growing demand. As a result, a total 

of 8ha has been planted at lnkandla Essential Oils in the financial year under review. 

Although ADA is making progress in the above programmes, a number of challenges are experienced 

in an attempt to meet targets in this programme. One of the main challenges we faced in this 

financial year was the reprioritization of sugar funding to other projects at the instance of DARD. 

This hindered the overall functioning of this cluster particularly in terms of jobs created and hectors 

of sugarcane planted. Also, the annual allocation of budgets poses a challenge in that, for 

infrastructure projects it takes a longer period to plan before the actual construction takes place 

and the funding structure does not take that into consideration. 
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01. 'Introduction

The Agribusiness Development Agency is a public entity established in November 2009. It is 

registered as a schedule 3 C Provincial Public Entity. The legislation to formalise its establishment 

has not been promulgated. 

02. 'Ethical 'lendership

The Board provides effective leadership based on a principled foundation. Responsible leadership 

characterised by the values of responsibility, accountability, fairness and transparency has been 

a defining characteristic of the ADA since establishment in 2010. The fundamental objective has 

always been to do business ethically while building a sustainable organisation that recognises the 

short- and long-term impact of its activities on the economy, society and the environment. 

03. Cm-pc,ral£ 'fthks

The conduct of board members and employees of the organisation is governed by the ADA Code 

of Ethics and Conduct, which has been approved by the board and circulated to all employees. 

The ADA Code of Ethics outlines ethical values that underpin ethical behaviour across the ADA. 

To foster implementation of the Code of Ethics and Conduct, an Anti-Corruption Strategy, which 

forms part of the risk management process, has been approved by the board to provide a 

framework for the management of ethics risks across the ADA. 

The ADA Risk Officer (RO) has been entrusted with the responsibility to facilitate management of 

conflict of interest risks by ensuring that board members and eligible employees declare their 

business interests annually. Declared business interests are recorded in the register of interests, 

which is also utilized in the development of related transactions report. 

Declaration of interests is done at all ADA engagements such as interviews, bid adjudication, bid 

evaluation and other management meetings. Any related parties transactions for the period 

under review are reported in the annual financial statements section of this report (disclosure Note 

29). 

'D'I. 'Board of r rustRRs 

4.1. Role and Function of the ADA Board 

The Board functions in accordance with the requirements of King 3 and within the context of the 

Board Charter, Deed of Trust, the PFMA and other applicable laws, rules and codes of governance. 

The Board is responsible for the governance of risk and information technology and has ensured 

that the organisation has an effective, independent audit and risk committee and an effective 

risk based internal audit function. On the recommendation of the Audit committee, the Board has 

considered and approved the separation of the position of the internal audit function and that 

of risk. Based on this separation, the Board is satisfied that the organisations system of internal 

controls is effective. The main responsibilities of the Board, as set out in the Board Charter, are; 
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Role and Function of the ADA Board ( continued) 

• Approving the strategic plan and annual performance plan, setting objectives and reviewing

key risks and performance,

• Monitoring the implementation of Board plan and strategies against the background of economic,

environmental and social issues relevant to the ADA and provincial political and economic

conditions, as well as mitigation of risks by management.

• Appointment of Chief Executive Officer and maintaining a succession plan,

• Pointing executive directors; and

• Determining the overall policies and processes to ensure the integrity of the organisations

management of risk and internal control.

4.2. Office Board Composition and Meeting Attendance 

Dr. M Mbatha Chairperson Dec 2013 Re-appointed 5 

Adv. Nirghin Exec Member Dec 2013 Re-appointed Audit Committee 5

Mr W.R. Dladla Exec Member Dec 2013 Audit Committee 4 

Project 

Committee 

Mr I. Z. Ngcobo Exec Member Dec 2013 Audit Committee 4 

Dr E. Ngidi Deputy Dec 2013 Audit Committee 4 

Chairperson 

Ms N. Zwane Exec Member Dec 2013 Projects 4 

Committee 

Mr D. Mkhwanazi Exec Member Dec 2013 Projects 3 

Committee 

HRR 

Committee 

Mr S. A. Ndlela Exec Member Dec 2013 HRR 5 

Committee 

Ms P. Dabideen Exec Member Dec 2013 HRR 5 

Committee 

Projects 3 

Committee 
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4.3. ADA Board Committee Composition 

Committee I No. of meefiog, I No. of members I Nome of membeB 
held 

Audit and Risk 3 4 Mr. Simjee (current 

Committee Chairperson) 

Mr. Wessel Nel 

Mr. Aubrey Ngc ob o  

Mr. Sihle Ndlovu 

Projects and Finance l 5 
Mr. D on Mkhwanazi 

Committee (Chairperson) 

Ms. Njabul o Zwane 

Dr. Edwin Ngidi 

Mr. Zakhe Dladla 

Ms. Preetha Dabideen 

HRR Committee 3 4 Mr. Armstrong Ndlela 

(Chairperson) 

Mr. Donald Mkhwanazi 

Mrs. Preetha Dabideen 

Adv . Ranjiv Nirghin 

05. 'Risk Mana.qemmt 'Rwiew

ADA uses an approved risk management framework to manage its risks; this contains inter alia 

Risk Management Policy and Risk Management Strategy; Fraud Prevention Plan; etc. Risk assessments 

are done at least once a year in order to identify the emerging risks. This process assists the Board 

to evaluate the effectiveness of its risk management strategy and to track the implementation 

of action plans in the risk register. The entity has a functional Audit & Risk Committee whose 

involvement in the process of risk management within the entity assists it in identifying and 

implementing action plans intended to mitigate risks to tolerable levels. The Committee oversees 

the risk management function on behalf of the Board. 

It is important to acknowledge and appreciate the involvement of the KZN Provincial Treasury in 

providing the much needed expertise in entire process of risk identification, assessment and control 

within ADA. On monthly basis the risk officer consolidates information from various sections of the 

entity pertaining to the implementation of risk management measures. 
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This information is submitted to the Risk & Audit Committee in a form of regular reports for scrutiny 

and monitoring. Information provided is independently subjected to audit by the internal audit 

function so that the Audit & Risk Committee satisfies itself that risks are indeed monitored as per 

the directive of the Board. 

ADA has laid a good foundation for the management of risk by providing a framework which 

guides the organization in the management of risks and by having a functional Audit & Risk 

Committee in place which plays an oversight role on behalf of the Board to ensure that risk 

management is embedded in the operations of the entity. There is a notable progressive 

improvement in the area of risk management within ADA since its inception but there is still room 

for improvement. 

06. 'lnJRrnalftluditandftludit & 'Risk Committee

6.1. Internal Audit 

Objectives of the Internal Audit 
• The internal audit is an independent objective designed to add value and improve the

Agency's operations.

• It also gives independent appraisals on the adequacy and the efficiency of the

Agency's internal controls.

Key Activities and Objectives of the Internal Audit

• To be an independent, objective, assurance and consulting activity that is designed to add

value and improve the operations of ADA.

• To assist the management of ADA to accomplish their objectives by bringing a systematic and

disciplined approach in evaluating and improving the effectiveness of internal controls,

governance and risk management processes.

Summary of Work Done During the Financial Year 2013/14 

Risk Based Audit as Per the Internal Audit Plan 

• Supply chain management

• Transfer payments

• Human resources (termination, appointments and leave)

• Asset management

• Subsistence and Travel Allowance

• Payroll Management

• Cell phone management

• Fleet Management

Legislative Audits 

• Review of quarterly and final performance information

• Review of the financial statements

Follow up Audits 

• AG report - external audit report

• SCM

• ITGC

• Transfer payments

• Asset management

• Human resource management

• Fleet management
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The role of the Committee is to provide independent assurance and assistance to the Accounting 

Authority on control, governance and risk management. The Committee does not replace 

established management responsibilities and delegations. The Committee will provide the Board 

with prompt and constructive reports on its findings, especially when issues are identified that 

could present a material risk to the Agency. 

Attendance of Audit Committee Meetings by Audit Risk Committee Members 

Audit and Risk Committee 
130 September '13 1 11 December '13 1

27 March '14 
Members 

Mr. Simjee (current Chairperson) Attended Attended Attended 

Mr. Wessel Ne! Attended Attended Attended 

Mr. Aubrey Ngcobo Attended Attended Attended 

Mr. Sihle Ndlovu Attended Attended Attended 

The Table Below Discloses Relevant Information on the Audit Committee Members 

Name Internal or Date appointed DateResigned No.of Meetings 

external attended 

Mr Simjee (current external August 2011 n/a 3 

chairpeson 

Mr Wessel Ne! external August 2013 n/a 3 

Mr Aubrey Ngcobo external August 2013 n/a 3 

Mr Sihle Ndlovu external August 2013 n/a 3 
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07. 'legislathte Cmnpllance

Compliance with legislation is one of the prioritized management areas within the ADA and in all 

activities. At all times ADA management strives to ensure proper procedures are followed and the 

policies of ADA are adhered to. 

The Manager for legal services is tasked with the responsibility to monitor compliance with applicable 

prescripts and report to the CEO on the status of compliance across the institution. During the 

period under review, compliance checklists were developed for the assessment of compliance 

with prioritized prescripts. 

The Unit legal services has developed a comprehensive contract register which assist ADA in 

ensuring that the management and compliance with contracts. The Section will ensure as ADA 

progress that there is 100% compliance with the PFMA, King Code, PPPFA and other legislative 

prescripts. 

08. Minimising Omflictof'lntue.st

In order to minimise conflict of interest the Agribusiness Development Agency has enforced that 

all its senior officials and those that sit at its bid committees signs declaration of business interest 

forms annually and at each Bid meeting. In instances where a member has identified possible 

area of conflict, they have to recues themselves from the meeting. 

{a) SCM officials and other role players in SCM are familiarized with the code of conduct; of which 

conflict of interest is mentioned as one of the pillars. The officials are required to acknowledge 

by signing the code of conduct and also declaration of interest forms on each and every bid 

committee meetings/ any ad hoe meetings intended for deliberating on SCM issues. Whenever 

there is a conflict of interest, the individual will disclose and be recused from the deliberations. 

{b) With regards to conflict of interest with service providers/ suppliers; the issue of conflict of interest 

is contained as one of the special conditions of bid. The clause states that bidders should not 

perform any assignment that would be in conflict with their prior or current obligations to other 

clients, or that may place them in a position of not being able to carry out the assignment in 

the best interest of the Agency. In addition, the service providers/ suppliers are required to 

disclose information by signing the following declarations; 

- SBD 4 Form declaration of interest;

- SBD 9 Form Certificate of independent bid determination, and

- SBD 8 Form Declaration of Bidders past SCM practices.

* In all of the above, the onus to disclose lies with the individual/ service provider.

{c) Currently, the entity does not have an automated system in place for identifying issues of 

conflict of interest. However if it is found that there was a misrepresentation of information; 

the bidder is notified and the company and its directors gets listed on National Treasury's list 

of restricted suppliers for a certain period. 
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09. 'Reporto(theflluditand 'Risk Cmnmi11£efor the year ended31 march201'1

Objective 

The audit and risk committee serves as an independent body to assist the Board with its responsibility 

for safeguarding assets, maintaining effective and efficient internal controls, reviewing the financial 

information and overseeing the preparation of the financial statements. 

Audit and Risk Committee Members and Attendance 

The audit and risk committee consists of 4 independent, suitably experienced and external members 

listed here under and meets at least every quarter as per its approved terms of reference. During 

the current year the following meetings were held; 

Members Qualifications 

I
Designation Meeting Attendance 

Name 

SEP'l3 DEC'l3 MAR'l4 

I. Simjee CA(SA) Chairperson v v v 

W.Nel CA(SA) Member v v v 

A.Ngcobo BSc. and LLB Member v v v 

S. Ndlovu MBA Member v v v 

The Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer and senior management (per invitation) and 
representatives from both external and internal audit attend the committee meetings. 
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Audit and Risk Committee Responsibilities 

The Audit and Risk Committee reports that it has complied with its responsibilities arising from 

Section 38 ( 1) (a) of the PFMA and Treasury Regulations 3.1.13. The Audit and Risk Committee also 

reports that it has adopted formal terms of reference as its audit and risk committee charter and 

has regulated its affairs in compliance with this charter. The audit and risk committee was unable 

to meet during the first quarter since there were only two members, the two additional members 

were appointed in the second quarter of the year. Furthermore the Committee has decided to 

postpone the review of the charter to the new financial year. Apart from these two issues the 

Committee has discharged i ts  responsibi l i t ies as contained in the Charter.  

Efficiency and Effectiveness of Internal Controls 

The system of internal control employed by the entity to financial and risk management is partially 

effective, efficient and transparent. In line with the PFMA and the recommendations from King 

Ill Report on Corporate Governance requirements, Internal Audit provides the Audit and Risk 

Committee and management with assurance that the internal controls are appropriate and 

effective. This is achieved by means of the risk management process, as well as the identification 

of corrective actions and suggested enhancements to the controls and processes. From the 

various reports of the Internal Auditors, the Audit Report on the annual financial statements and 

the management letter of the Auditor-General South Africa, it was noted that although there 

were weaknesses identified in internal controls, there were no indicated material deficiencies in 

the system of internal controls or deviations there from. Management have committed to implement 

corrective action and this will be monitored by the Audit and Risk Committee on an ongoing basis. 

Review of Annual Financial Statements 

The Audit and Risk Committee has noted the unqualified opinion expressed by the Auditor-General 

in his report on the Annual Financial Statements and commends management with regard to the 

preparation and presentation of these financial statements for the year under review. 

The Audit And Risk Committee has also; 

• Reviewed and discussed the audited Annual Financial Statements, to be included in the annual
report, with the Auditor General,  management and the accounting off icer;

• Reviewed changes in accounting policies and practices;

• Reviewed significant adjustments resulting from the audit and

• Concluded that the going concern premise is appropriate in preparing the Annual Financial
Statements.

Risk Assessment and Management 

The Committee has been encouraged by efforts made by management in putting in place 

effective risk management strategies which are based on annual risk assessment reviews. The 

implementation of the risk management strategies have been delayed, but the Audit and Risk 

Committee will continue to monitor this management responsibility on an ongoing basis. 
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Performance Management 

The Committee has taken note of the findings of the Auditor-General on performance information 

during the year under review. The issue of compliance with all regulatory requirements on 

performance information and management actions in addressing these matters will be monitored 

closely by the Committee. The Committee shall further commit to guiding the management in 

developing effective structures and mechanisms to mitigate a future reoccurrence of the issues 

as noted by the office of the Auditor General. 

Conclusion 

The audit and risk Committee concurred with and accepted the Auditor Generals conclusions 

on the Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 and recommends that the 

audited Annual Financial Statements be adopted by the Board. 

I would like to take this opportunity to thank the previous Chair of the Committee, Ms S Raja for 

her dedication in fulfilling her responsibilities as well as the current members for their support. 

Furthermore, I would like to thank the Board for their support through the year. 

I Simjee 

Chairperson 
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HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGEMENT 

Expenditure 

Departments budget in terms of clearly defined programmes. The following tables summarise 

final audited expenditure by programme (Table 2.1) and by salary bands (Table 2.2). In 

particular, it provides an indication of the amount spent on personnel costs in terms of each of 

the programmes or salary bands within the department. 

TABLE 1.1- Personnel costs by programme, 2013/14 

Professional 
Personnel 

Total Personnel Training 
and Special 

cost as a 
Programme Expenditure Expenditure Expenditure 

Services 
percent of 

(R'000) (R'000) (R'000) (R'000) 
total 

expenditure 

Finance & 226 309 
Administration 

Total 226 309 

TABLE 1.2- Personnel costs by salary band, 2013114 

Average 

Average 
personnel 

cost per 
employe 

(R'000) 

Personnel 
Salary bands Expenditure 

% of total personnel personnel cost 

(R'000) 
cost per employee 

(R'000) 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) -

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 231 180.29 

Highly skilled production 3 069 361.98 226 580.63 
(Levels 6-8) 

Highly skilled supervision 6 137 256.99 571 339.44 
(Levels 9-12) 

Senior management (Levels 6 948 705.40 803 023.43 
13-16)

Total 16 386 504.66 1 600 943.50 

The following tables provide a summary per programme (Table 2.3) and salary bands (Table 

2.4 ), of expenditure incurred as a result of salaries, overtime, home owners allowance and 

medical assistance. In each case, the table provides an indication of the percentage of the 

personnel budget that was used for these items. 
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TABLE 1.3 - Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by

programme, 2013/14

Programme Salaries Overtime 
Home Owners 

Medical Assistance 
Allowance 

Salaries 
Overtime as HOA as a Medical 

as a % 
Amount 

of 
Amount a% of Amount %of Amount Assistance as 

(R'000) 
personn 

(R'000) personnel (R'000) personnel (R'000) % of personnel 

el cost 
cost cost cost 

Finance & 16 386 504.66 
Administration 

Total 16 386 504.66 

TABLE 1.4- Salaries, Overtime, Home Owners Allowance and Medical Assistance by 

salary bands, 2013114 

Salary Bands Salaries Overtime 
Home Owners 

Medical Assistance 
Allowance 

Salaries Arnau Overtime 
Medical 

Amount as a% of nt as a% of Amount 
HOA as a% 

Amount 
Assistance 

(R'000) personnel (R'00 personnel (R'000) 
of personnel 

(R'000) 
as a% of 

cost 0) cost
cost personnel 

cost 

Lower skilled -

(Levels 1-2) 

Skilled 231 180.29 
{Levels 3-5) 

Highly skilled 3 069 361.98 
production 

{Levels 6-8) 

Highly skilled 6 137 256.99 
supervision 

(Levels 9-12) 

Senior 6 948 705.40 
management 
{Levels 13-
16) 

Total 16 386 504.66 
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[If there were no cases where the remuneration bands exceeded the grade determined 

by job evaluation, use the following table as TABLE 4.3) 

Total Number of Employees whose salaries exceeded the grades determined by job 

evaluation in 2013/ 14 

Employment changes 

This section provides information on changes in employment over the financial year. 

Turnover rates provide an indication of trends in the employment profile of the department. 

The following tables provide a summary of turnover rates by salary band (Table 5.1) and by 

critical occupations (Table 5.2). (These "critical occupations" should be the same as those 

listed in Table 3.3). 

TABLE 4. 1 - Annual turnover rates by salary band for the period 1 April 2013 to 31

March 2014 

Number of 
Appointments Terminations 

None 

employees 
and transfers and transfers Turnover 

Salary Band per band as 
into the out of the rate 

on 1 April 
department department 

2013 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) -

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 2 

Highly skilled 14 2 
production(Levels 6-8) 

Highly skilled 11 3 1 
supervision(Levels 9-12) 

Senior Management Service 6 1 2 
Band A (Level 13) 

Senior Management Service 1 

Band B (Level 14) 

Senior Management Service 1 1 

Band C (Level 15) 

Senior Management Service 
Band D 

Total 35 6 4 
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TABLE 4.2-Annual turnover rates by critical occupation for the period 1 April 2013 to 

31 March 2014 

Occupation: Number of 
employees 

Appointments and 
Terminations 

per 
transfers into the 

and transfers Turnover 
occupation as 

department 
out of the rate 

on 1 April department 
2014 

Chief Executive Officer 1 0 1 

Chief financial Officer 1 1 1 

Projects Manager 1 0 0 

Total 3 1 2 

Table 5.3 identifies the major reasons why staff left the department. 

Table 4.3 - Reasons why staff are leaving the department 

Termination Type Number % of total 

Death 

Resignation 3 

Expiry of contract 

Dismissal - operational changes 

Dismissal - misconduct 

Dismissal - inefficiency 

Discharged due to ill-health 

Retirement 

Transfers to other Public Service Departments 

Other 

Total 3 

Total number of employees who left as a % of the total employment 

Salary level 
Notch 

Promotions 
promotions Progressions 

progressions 
Occupation 

Employees as 
to another 

as a% of to another 
as a% of 

at 1 April 2013 
salary level 

employees notch within 
employees by 

by a salary level 
occupation 

occupation 

Financial Financial 
Manager Manager 

Total 
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Employment equity 

The tables in this section are based on the formats prescribed by the Employment Equity Act, 55 of 1998. 

5.1 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the following occupational 

categories as on 31 March 2014 

Occupational Male Female Total 
categories (SASCO) 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Legislators, senior 2 1 3 6 

officials and managers 

Professionals 6 5 11 

Technicians and 2 3 1 6 

associate professionals 

Clerks 1 4 1 1 1 8 

Service and sales 
workers 

Skilled agriculture and 
fishery workers 

Craft and related trades 
workers 

Plant and machine 
operators and 
assemblers 

Elementary 1 1 
occupations 

Total 12 1 15 2 1 1 32 

Employees with -

disabilities 
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5.2 - Total number of employees (including employees with disabilities) in each of the

following occupational bands as on 31 March 2014

Male Female 
Occupational Bands 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian 

Top Management 

Senior Management 2 3 

Professionally 6 5 

qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

Skilled technical and 2 3 1 

academically qualified 
workers, junior 
management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents 

Semi-skilled and 1 4 1 1 

discretionary decision 
making 

Unskilled and defined 1 

decision making 

Total 11 16 2 1 

Occupational Male Female 

White 

1 

1 

2 

Bands African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White 

Top Management 

Senior Management 

Professionally 1 1 

qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

Skilled technical and 1 1 

academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

Semi-skilled and 1 1 2 
discretionary 
decision making 

Unskilled and 1 1 

defined decision 
making 

Total 1 3 1 5 

Total 

6 

11 

6 

8 

1 

32 

Total 
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5.3- Promotions for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Occupational Male Female 

Bands African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

Top Management 

Senior Management 1 1 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and mid-
management 

Skilled technical and 
academically 
qualified workers, 
junior management, 
supervisors, foreman 
and superintendents 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 
decision making 

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making 

Total 1 1 

Employees with 
disabilities 
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5.4- Terminations for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Occupational Male Female 
Bands 

African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

Top Management 

Senior 3 3 

Management 

Professionally 
qualified and 
experienced 
specialists and 
mid-management 

Skilled technical 
and academically 
qualified workers, 
junior 
management, 
supervisors, 
foreman and 
superintendents 

Semi-skilled and 
discretionary 
decision making 

Unskilled and 
defined decision 
making 

Total 3 3 

Employees with disabilities 

5.5- Disciplinary action for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

Male Female 

Disciplinary action African Coloured Indian White African Coloured Indian White Total 

3 3 
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TABLE 7.1- Sick leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 

% days with 
Number of % of total 

Average Estimated 
Total Employees employees 

Salary Band 
days 

medical 
using sick using sick 

days per 
certification 

leave leave 
employee 

Lower skilled (Levels 
1-2)

Skilled (Levels 3-5) 9 

Highly skilled 82 
production (Levels 6-
8) 

Highly skilled 66 
supervision (Levels9-
12) 

Senior management 10 
(Levels 13-16) 

Total 167 

Table 9.3 summarises the utilisation of annual leave. The wage agreement concluded with 

trade unions in the PSCBC in 2000 requires management of annual leave to prevent high 

levels of accrued leave being paid at the time of termination of service. 

TABLE 7.2-Annua/ Leave, 1 January 2013 to 31 December 2013 

Salary Bands Total days taken 
Average per 

employee 

Lower skilled (Levels 1-2) 

Skilled Levels 3-5) 26 

Highly skilled production (Levels 6-8) 167 

Highly skilled supervision(Levels 9-12) 151 

Senior management (Levels 13-16) 79 

Total 423 

TABLE 7.3- Leave pay outs for the period 1 April 2013 to 31 March 2014 

The following table summarises payments made to employees as a result of leave that was 

not taken. 

Total Amount Number of 
Average 

REASON 
(R'000) Employees 

payment per 
employee 

Leave pay-out for 2013/14 due to non- - -

utilisation of leave for the previous cycle 

Cost 
(R'000) 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE KWAZULU-NATAL PROVINCIAL LEGISLATURE 

ON AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT TRUST 

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the financial statements of the Agribusiness Development Trust set out on

pages 67 to 97 which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 March 2014, the

statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets, and cash flow

statement for the year then ended, as well as the notes, comprising a summary of significant

accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Accounting authority's responsibility for the financial statements 

2. The accounting authority is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these

financial statements in accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised

Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of the Public Finance

Management Act of South Africa, 1999 (Act No. 1 of 1999) (PFMA), and for such internal control

as the accounting authority determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial

statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor-general's responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. I

conducted my audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No.

25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof and International Standards on

Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements, and plan and

perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements

are free from material misstatement.

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditorfs

judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial

statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor

considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the

financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entityfs internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting

policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as

well as evaluating the overal l  presentation of the f inancial statements.

5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Agribusiness Development Trust as at 31 March 2014 and financial performance

and cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with the South African Standards of

General Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP) and the requirements of

the PFMA.
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Emphasis of Matters 

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Material Underspending of the Conditional Grants 

8. As disclosed in note 26 to the financial statements, the entity has materially underspent the

budget on the on and off infrastructure programme to the amount of R69 million. As a

consequence, the entity has not achieved 09 out of the 17 audited targets.

Irregular Expenditure 

9. As disclosed in note 21.1 to the financial statements, irregular expenditure amounting to R4,93

million was incurred by the entity in the period as a result of the contravention of the supply

chain (SCM) policies and legislation.

Material Losses 

10. As disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, material losses to the amount of R2.22

million were incurred as a result of alleged criminal conduct by a service provider.

Additional Matter 

11. I draw attention to the matter below. My opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Unaudited Supplementary Information 

12. The supplementary information set out on page 25 does not form part of the financial

statements and is presented as additional information. I have not audited this information

and, accordingly, I do not express an opinion thereon.

REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

13. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the

following findings on the reported performance information against predetermined objectives

for selected objectives presented in the annual performance report, non-compliance with

legislation as well as internal control. The objective of my tests was to identify reportable

findings as described under each subheading but not to gather evidence to express assurance

on these matters. Accordingly, I do not express an opinion or conclusion on these matters.

Predetermined Objectives 

14. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the reported

performance information for the following selected objectives presented in the annual

performance report of the entity for the year ended 31 March 2014:

• Technical support on pages 30 to 32

• On and off farm infrastructure on pages 33 to 36
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15. I evaluated the reported performance information against the overall criteria of usefulness

and reliability.

16. I evaluated the usefulness of the reported performance information to determine whether

it was presented in accordance with the National Treasury's annual reporting principles and

whether the reported performance was consistent with the planned objectives. I further

performed tests to determine whether indicators and targets were well defined, verifiable,

specific, measurable, time bound and relevant, as required by the National Treasury's

Framework for  managing programme performance information (FMPPI).

17. I assessed the reliability of the reported performance information to determine whether it

was valid, accurate and complete.

18. The material findings in respect of the selected objectives are as follows:

Technical Support 

Reliability of Reported Performance Information 

19. Validity

The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store

performance information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual

achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly important

targets were not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided.

This was due to a lack of frequent review of the validity of reported achievements against

source documentation.

On and Off Farm Infrastructure 

Reliability of Reported Performance Information 

20. Validity

The FMPPI requires auditees to have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store

performance information to ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual

achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets. Significantly important

targets were not reliable when compared to the source information or evidence provided.

This was due to a lack of frequent review of the validity of reported achievements against

source documentation.

21. I did not raise any material findings on the usefulness of the reported performance information

for capacity building and mentorship, technical supports and on and off farm infrastructure.

Additional matter
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Additional Matter 

22. I draw attention to the following matter:

Achievement of Planned Targets 

23. Refer to the annual performance report on pages 23 to 36 for information on the achievement

of the planned targets for the year. This information should be considered in the context of

the material findings on the reliability of the reported performance information for the selected

objectives reported in paragraphs 18 to 20 of this report

Adjustment of Material Misstatements 

24. I identified material misstatements in the annual performance report submitted for auditing

on the reported performance information for provide business, technical, production and

marketing support to black commercial farmers; and create employment opportunity for the

broader rural community of KZN.

Compliance with legislation 

25. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity had complied with applicable

legislation regarding financial matters, financial management and other related matters. My

findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key legislation, as set out in the

general notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows:

Annual financial statements 

26. The financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in some material respects

in accordance with the requirements of section 55(2)(a) of the PFMA. Material misstatements

of Irregular Expenditure disclosure item identified by the auditors were subsequently corrected,

resulting in the financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion.

Expenditure management 

27. The accounting authority did not take effective steps to prevent irregular expenditure as

required by section 51 ( 1) (b) (ii) of the PFMA.
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Internal control 

28. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the financial statements, annual

performance report and compliance with legislation. The matters reported below are limited

to the significant internal control deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the performance

report and the findings on non-compliance with legislation included in this report.

Leadership 

29. The accounting authority did not adequately exercise oversight responsibility over compliance

with the PFMA and Treasury Regulations for the procurement of goods and services and the

preparation of the annual financial statements.

Financial and Performance Management 

30. Management did not perform adequate reviews of the financial statements to ensure that

they were free from material misstatements and complied in all material respects with SA

Standards of GRAP.

Governance 

31 . The audit committee did not adequately assess the effectiveness of controls and responses 

to risks as evidenced by material findings in the financial statements and compliance findings. 

Auditor General 

Pietermaritzburg 

31 July2014 

Auditing to build public confidence 

L 



AGRIBUSINESS DEVELOPMENT TRUSTtto Agnbusoness Development Agency 
(Registration number IT 2041 /1999) 

ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014 

L 

2013/2014 Annual Report 6 7 



INDEX 

The reports and statements set out below comprise the annual financial statements presented by the Board of Trustees: 

Responsibility of the Trustees 

Statement of Financial Position 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Cash Flow Statement 

Accounting Policies 

Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

The following supplementary information does not form part of the annual financial statements 

and is unaudited Grant register 

6 8 2013/201 4 Annual Report

L 

Page 

70 

71 

72 

73 

74 

75 - 87 

88 - 97 

98 



Agri-Business Development Trust t/a Agribusiness Development Agency 

(Registration number IT 2041 /1999) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Corporate Information 

Registration number 

Registered office 

Postal adress 

Trustees 

Auditors 

Preparer 

Bankers 

IT 2041 /1999 

5 Cascades Crescent 

Cascades Office Park 

Montrose 

KwaZulu-Natal 

Pietermaritzburg 

3202 

Private Bag XO 1 

Cascades 

Montrose 

3202 

Dr MTS Mbatha -Reappointed 01 November 

2013 

ME Ngidi-Appointed 01 November 2013 

J Chitja-Term ended 31 October2013 

R Nirghin -Reappointed 01 November 2013 

RB Molefe -Term ended 31 October 2013 

RK Barnsley-Term ended 31 October 2013 

N Zwane -Appointed 01 November 2013 

BD Mkhwanazi -Appointed 01 November 2013 

P Dabideen -Appointed 01 November 2013 

SA Ndlela -Appointed 01 November 2013 

IZ Ngcobo -Appointed O 1 November 2013 

WR Dladla -Appointed 01 November 2013 

Auditor -General South Africa 

The annual financial statements were internally compiled by: 

Ms T Ngwenya -Chief Financial Officer and approved by the 

Board of Trustees 

ABSA Bank 

4 Frosterley Park, La Lucia Ridge, Durban 

2013/2014 Annual Report 6 9 

L 



Agri-Business Development Trust t/a Agribusiness Development Agency 

(Registration number IT 2041 /1999) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Responsibility of the Trustees 

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance of adequate accounting records. It is their duty 

to ensure that the preparation of annual financial statements is done efficiently. Integrity is insisted 

upon in all of the functions of the Trustees. Auditors have the responsibility of reporting on the fair 

representation of the annual financial statements. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Standards 

of Generally Recognised. Accounting Practice and in the manner required by the Public Finance 

Management Act. 

The Trustees are also responsible for the Trust's systems of internal financial control as well as to 

ensure that appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgment 

and estimates, are applied on a consistent and going concern basis. The system of internal control 

is designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute assurance as to the reliability of the financial 

statements and to adequately safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of assets, and to 

prevent and detect misstatement and loss. The Trustees, are of the opinion, based on the information 

and explanations given and on comment by the independent external auditors on the results of 

their statutory audit, that the Trust's internal accounting controls are adequate, so that the financial 

records may be relied upon for preparing the annual financial statements and maintaining 

accountability for assets and liabilities. The Trustees believe that the Trust's assets are protected 

and used as intended in all material respects with appropriate authorisation. Nothing has come 

to the attention of the Trustees to indicate that any material breakdown in the functioning of these 

controls, procedures and systems has occurred during the year under review. 

In preparing the annual financial statements, the Trust has used appropriate accounting policies, 

supported by reasonable judgments and estimates, and has complied with all applicable 

accounting standards. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, since the 

Trustees have every reason to believe that the Agency has adequate resources in place to 

continue in operation for the foreseeable future. 

The annual financial statements set out on pages 67 to 97 were approved by the board of Trustees 

on 26 May 2014 and are signed on their behalf by: 

Dr M. Mbatha 

Chairperson of the Board of Trustees 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 31 March 2014 

Figures in Rand 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 
Deposits 
Cash and cash equivalents 

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 
Intangible assets 

Total Assets 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 
Operating lease liability 
Payables from exchange transactions 
Unspent conditional grants and receipts 

Non-Current Liabilities 

Finance lease obligation 

Total Liabilities 

Net Assets 

Net Assets 

Contributed capital 
Accumulated surplus 

Total Net Assets 

Note(s) 

8 

3 

4 
5 

11 
6 

10 
26 

11 

9 

2014 

35 357 
27 118 

72 788 654 

72 851 129 

2 957 247 
2 191 744 

5 148 991 

78 000 120 

67 199 
130 070 

3 483 227 
69 001 811 

72 682 307 

72 586 

72 754 893 

5 245 227 

5 000 
5 240 227 

5 245 227 

2013 
Restated* 

40 213 
27 118 

97 283 101 

97 350 432 

1 839 132 
1 392 925 

3 232 057 

100 582 489 

594 467 
11 338 400 
85 950 415 

97 883 282 

97 883 282 

2 699 207 

5 000 
2 694 207 

2 699 207 
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Statement of Financial Performance 

Figures in Rand 

Revenue 
KZN Department of Economic Development and Tourism 
KZN Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs 
Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
KZN Department of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs 
Other income 

Total Revenue 

Operating expenses 
Advertising 
Auditors remuneration 
Bank charges 
Cleaning 
Computer software & licences 
Consulting 
Office consumables 
Amortisation 
Depreciation 
Employee costs 
Photocopying and printing 
Project expenditure 
Events 
Catering 
Board fees and expenditure 
General expenses 
Recruitment costs 
Insurance 
Operating lease rental 
Legal expenses 
Marketing 
Motor vehicle expenses 
Publications 
Stationery 
Repairs and maintenance 
Security 
Computer expenses 
Staff Induction 
Subscriptions 
Telephone and fax 
Courier and postage 
Training 
Travel and subsistence 
Electricity and water 
Small assets 

Total expenses 

Operating surplus 
Finance costs 

Surplus for the year 
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Note(s) 

13 

12 

26 

2014 

43 181 250 
1 562 249 
5 996 144 

78 762 875 
36 856 

129 539 374 

379 173 
685 037 

22 009 
305 616 
174 901 

2 210 807 
22 896 

1 139 000 
782 712 

17 413 008 
248 897 

93 561 605 

33 972 
1 321 570 

11 773 
54 821 

107 259 
2 457 525 

376 407 
1 670 536 

185 644 
107 396 
266 327 

61 279 
347 546 
327 168 
101 325 

17 796 
898 673 

6 762 
226 309 
917 968 
481 928 

65 624 

126 991 269 

2 548 105 
2 085 

2 546 020 

2013 
Restated* 

48 846 397 
105 881 

11 844 681 
66 765 826 

32 263 

127 595 048 

606 501 
267 880 

16 889 
330 475 

57 033 
902 759 

26 803 
885 463 
421 009 

13 958 709 
244 520 

100 181 764 
2 289 

18 415 
1 155 552 

8 137 
91 009 
68 571 

2 606 344 
894 244 

1 175 721 
81 230 

58 701 
94 293 

330 997 
180 880 

960 
68 135 

758 784 
9 524 

117 382 
907 146 
315 411 

10 267 

126 853 797 

741 251 

741 251 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Figures in Rand 

Balance at 01 April 2012 
Changes in net assets 
Restated surplus for the year 

Total changes 

Restated* Balance at 01 April 2013 
Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 

Total changes 

Balance at 31 March 2014 

Contributed 
capital 

5 000 

5 000 

5 000 

L 

Accumulated Total net 
surplus assets 

1952956 1957956 

741 251 741 251 

741 251 741 251 

2 69 4 207 2 699 207 

2 546 020 2 546 020 

2 546 020 2 546 020 

5 24 0 227 5 245 227 
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Cash Flow Statement 

Figures in Rand 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 
Sundry income 
Interest received 
Transfers and subsidies 

Payments 
Employee costs 
Suppliers 
Finance costs 

Net cash flows from operating activities 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 
Purchase of other intangible assets 

Net cash flows from investing activities 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Finance lease payments 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 
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Note(s) 

15 

4 
5 

3 

2014 

36 856 
5 646 241 

106 909 691 

112 592 788 

(18 734 578) 
(114 651 252) 

(2 085) 

2013 
Restated* 

32 263 
642 592 

136 008 029 

136 682 884 

(15 114 261) 
(90 617 429) 

(133 387 915) (105 731 690) 

(20 795 127) 

(1 899 201) 
(1 937 819) 

(3 837 020) 

137 700 

(24 494 447) 
97 283 101 

72 788 654 

30 951 194 

(1 027 587) 
(461 312) 

(1 488 899) 

29 462 295 
67 820 806 

97 283 101 
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Accounting Policies 

1. Presentation of Annual Financial Statements

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of 

Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (GRAP), issued by the Accounting Standards Board 

(ASB). 

These annual financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and 

are in accordance with historical cost convention as the basis of measurement, unless specified 

otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. The following GRAP Standards were approved 

by Accounting Standards Board but are not yet effective; 

GRAP 18 Segment Reporting 

GRAP 20 Related Party Disclosure 

GRAP 32 Service Concession Arrangements: Grantor 

GRAP 105 Transfer of Functions between Entities under common Control 

GRAP 106 Transfer of Functions between Entit ies Not Under Common Control 

GRAP 107 Mergers 

GRAP 108 Statutory receivables 

The above standards will be adopted when they become effective (except for those standards 

that are not are not applicable to the Entity) 

• The cash flow statement is prepared in accordance with the direct method.

• Specific information has been presented separately on the statement of financial position such

as:

-Receivables from non-exchange transactions,

-Payables from non-exchange transactions

• Disclosure of any amount and nature of any restrictions on cash balances is required.

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied in the

preparation of these annual financial statements, are disclosed below.

1.1. Going concern assumption 

These annual financial statements have been prepared based on the expectation that 

the entity will continue to operate as a going concern for at least the next 12 months. 

1.2. Trade and other receivables 

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value that are directly 

attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial liability. Transaction costs are added to 

financial instrument carried at amortised cost. 

1.3. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits held at call accounts with banks, and 

investments in money market instruments. 
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

1.4. Accounting estimates and assumptions 

In preparing the annual financial statements, management is required to make estimates and 

assumptions that affect the amounts represented in the annual financial statements and related 

disclosures. Use of available information and the application of judgement is inherent 

in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 

which may be material to the annual financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

1.4.1.  Usefu l l ives of property, p l ant  and equipment and int angib le asset s 

The entitity depreciates/ amortises its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets over 

the estimated useful lives of the assets, taking into account the residual values of the assets at 

the end of their useful lives, which is determined when the asset becomes available for use. The 

useful lives and residual values of the assets are based on industry knowledge and reviewed 

annually. 

1.4 .2. Revenue recognition 

Accounting policy on Revenue from Exchange Transactions 1.12 on Revenue from non-exchange 

Transactions describes the conditions under which revenue is recorded by the management of 

the entity. In making their judgement, management considered the detailed criteria for the 

recognition of revenue as set outt in GRAP 9; Revenue from Exchange Transactions and 

GRAP 23 Revenue from Exchange Transactions and inparticular, when services have been 

rendered. The management of the entity is satisfied that recognition of the revenue in the current 

year is inappropriated. 

Agri-Business Development Agency Trust 

(Registration number IT 2041 /1999) 

Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Accounting Policies 

1.4. Accounting estimates and assumptions ( continued) 

1.4.3. Provisions 

Managment determined an estmate for provision raised based on the information available. 

1.4.4. Financial assets and liabilities 

The classification of financial assets and liabilities into categories, is based on managements 

educated judgement. 

1.4.5. Impairment of Property plant and equipment 

The impariment of property, plant and equipment is based on the input provided by the entity's 

technical advisers including those of management. This input includes the condition assessment 

of assets after physical verification. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.4. Accounting estimates and assumptions ( continued) 

1.4.6. Effective interest rate 

The entity used the most relevant contractual risk rate applicable to each catergory of assets and 

liabilities to discount future cashflows. Where none exists the prime interest rate is used to discount 

the future cashflows. 

1.4.7. Impairment allowance 

Management currenlty determines an impairment allowance for accounts receivable based on 

collectiont rends. This basis is subject to review after the receivables database hose has been 

updated. 

1.5. Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) 

that are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, 

and are expected to be used during more than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 

• it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will

flow to the entity; and

• the cost of the item can be measured reliably.

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. The cost of an item of property, plant 

and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the location 

and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. 

Trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 
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Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date 

of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary 

asset or monetary assets, or acombination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset 

acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the acquired item's fair value was not 

determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful 

lives, they are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and 

equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and 

equipment and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement 

cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of property, plant and equipment, the 

carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 

losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected 

useful lives to their estimated residual value. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment 

losses. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 

Item 

Furniture and fixtures 

Motor vehicles 

Computer equipment 

Other fixed assets 

Average useful life 

7 years 

5 years 

4 - 6 years 

3 years 
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Accounting Policies 

1.5. Property, Plant and Equipment ( continued) 

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at 

the end of each reporting date. If the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is 

accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the 

previous estimate unless expectations differ from the previous estimate. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in 

the carrying amount of another asset. 

Items of property, plant and equipment are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when 

there are no further economic benefits or service potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 

included in surplus or deficit when the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the 

derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference 

between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.6 Intangible Assets 

An asset is identifiable if it either: 

• is separable, i.e. is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred,

licensed, rented or exchanged, either individually or together with a related contract, identifiable

assets or liability, regardless of whether the entity intends to do so; or

• arises from binding arrangements (including rights from contracts), regardless of whether those

rights are transferable or separable from the entity or from other rights and obligations.

An intangible asset is recognised when: 

• it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable

to the asset will flow to the entity; and

• the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably.

The entity assesses the probability of expected future economic benefits or service potential using 

reasonable and supportable assumptions that represent managementfs best estimate of the set 

of economic conditions that will exist over the useful life of the asset. 
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1.6 Intangible Assets ( continued) 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an 

expense when it is incurred. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment 

losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant 

factors, there is no foreseeable limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate 

net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not provided for these intangible assets, but 

they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the asset may 

be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over 

their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each 

reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as 

indefinite is an indicator that the asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment 

and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance 

are not recognised as intangible assets. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual 

values as follows: 

Item 

Computer software 

1.7. Financial Instruments 

Useful life 

3 years 

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial 

liability or a residual 

interest of another entity. 

A financial asset is: 

• cash;

• a residual interest of another entity; or

• a contractual right to:
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Accounting Policies 

1.6. Intangible Assets ( continued) 

-receive cash or another financial asset from another entity; or

-exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are

potentially 

favourable to the entity. 

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any 

impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate except for short

term receivables when the recognition of interest would be 

immaterial. 

A financial liability is any liability that is a contractual obligation to: 

• deliver cash or another financial asset to another entity; or

• exchange financial assets or financial liabilities under conditions that are potentially unfavourable

to the entity.

The financial liability is initially measured at fair value. Financial liabilities are subsequently measured 

at amortised cost using the effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an 

effective yield basis, except for short-term trade payables where the recognition of interest will 

be immaterial. 

Initial measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities 

The entity measures a financial asset and financial liability initially at its fair value plus transaction 

costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of the financial asset or financial 

liability. 
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1.8. Leases 

Finance Leases - Lessee 

Finance leases are recognised as assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position at 

amounts equal to the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the minimum 

lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the statement of financial 

position as a finance lease obligation. 

The discount rate used in calculating the present value of the minimum lease payments is the 

interest rate implicit in the lease. 

Minimum lease payments are apportioned between the finance charge and reduction of the 

outstanding liability. The finance charge is allocated to each period during the lease term so as 

to produce a constant periodic rate of on the remaining balance of the liability. 

Any contingent rents are expensed in the period in which they are incurred. 

Operating Leases - Lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term. The difference between the amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual 

payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.9. Impairment of Non-Cash-Generating Assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the entity with the primary objective of generating 

a commercial return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a 

profit-orientated entity, it generates a commercial return. 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

mpairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and 

above the systematic recognition of the loss of the assets future economic benefits or service 

potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating assets fair value less costs to 

sell and its value in use. 

Identification 

When the carrying amount of a non-cash-generating asset exceeds its recoverable service amount, 

it is impaired. 
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Accounting Policies 

1. 9. Impairment of Non-Cash-generating assets ( continued)

The entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a non-cash

generating asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the entity estimates the recoverable 

service amount of the asset. 

Irrespective of whether there is any indication of impairment, the entity also tests a non-cash

generating intangible asset with an indefinite useful life or a non-cash-generating intangible asset 

not yet available for use for impairment annually by comparing its carrying amount with its 

recoverable service amount. This impairment test is performed at the same time every year. If an 

intangible asset was initially recognised during the current reporting period, that intangible asset 

was tested for impairment before the end of the current report ing period. 

1.10. Contributed Capital 

Contributed capital is the initial contribution made by the Kwazulu-Natal Provincial government. 

1.11. Employee Benefits 

Post-Employment Benefits: Defined Contribution Plans 

Defined contribution plans are post-employment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed 

contributions into a separate entity (a fund) and will have no legal or constructive obligation to 

pay further contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all employee benefits 

relating to employee service in the current and prior periods. 

When an employee has rendered service to the entity during a reporting period, the entity 

recognise the contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service: 

• as a liability (accrued expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. If the contribution

already paid exceeds the contribution due for service before the reporting date, an entity

recognise that excess as an asset (prepaid expense) to the extent that the prepayment will lead

to, for example, a reduction in future payments or a cash refund; and

• as an expense, unless another Standard requires or permits the inclusion of the contribution in

the cost of an asset

Where contributions to a defined contribution plan do not fall due wholly within twelve months 

after the end of the reporting period in which the employees render the related service, they are 

discounted. The rate used to discount reflects the time value of money. The currency and term 

of the financial instrument selected to reflect the time value of money is consistent with the 

currency and estimated term of the obligation. 
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1.12. Provisions 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed 

in note 17. 

Provisions are recognised when the entity has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of past events, for which it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to 

settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. All the provisions are 

short-term in nature and thus ignore the effect of discounting. 

1.13. Revenue 

Recognition 

Revenue comprises of revenue from exchange and non-exchange transactions. Exchange 

transactions involve the receipts of revenue in exchange for which the entity renders services, sells 

goods, or permits the use of an entity asset. Non exchange transactions involve the receipt of 

revenue by the entity giving approximate equal value in return. 

Accounting policy on revenue describes the conditions under which revenue is recorded by the 

management of the entity. In making their judgements, management considered the detailed 

criteria for the recognition of revenue as set out in GRAP 9, Revenue from Exchange Transactions 

and GRAP 23 Revenue from non-exchange transactions, when services are rendered, whether 

the service has been rendered. The management of the entity is satisfied that recognition of the 

revenue in the current year is appropriate. 

Grants and Other Donor Income 

Conditional government grants and other donor funding are recognised as revenue: 

• in the period in which revenue is receivable when grants are not subject to restrictions;

• in the period in which the revenue is receivable when the grants are subject to restrictions but

not subject toconditions;

• incrementally against expenditure when the unspent portions of the grants must be refunded

if the grant conditions are not met. A liability is raised in respect of the grant;

• on project completion when the grants must be refunded in full and all of the grant conditions

are met. A liability is raised in respect of the grant.

Interest Earned on Grant Income 

Interest earned on grant monies received is reflected as amounts owing to funders in a case where 

specific permission is required from the funder before it can be expended on project activities. 

When approval is granted, interest earned is transferred to conditional grants and recognised as 

revenue in accordance with the principles set out in the paragraphs above. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.13. Revenue ( continued) 
Unspent Grants 

When grants are received they are initially recognized as as a liability. Once the entity has complied 

with al the conditions of the grant received, the grant is reallocated from liability and recognised 

in the statement of financial performance. 

Other Income 

Revenue from the sale of bid documents is recognised upon receipt of the cash. 

1.14. Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 

Irregular expenditure means expenditure incurred in contravention of, or not in accordance with 

a requirement of any applicable legislation. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure refers to expenditure 

that was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been exercised. 

Irregular, unauthorised, fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised against the specific class 

of events to which it relates and if and when incurred in a note to the financial statements when 

it has been identified. 

1.15. Conditional Grants and Receipts 

Revenue received from conditional grants, and funding are recognised as revenue to the extent 

that the entity has complied with any of the criteria, conditions or obligations embodied in the 

agreement. To the extent that the criteria, conditions or obligations have not been met a liability 

is recognised. 

1.16. Budget Information 

Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations 

(or equivalent), which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 

General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide information on whether resources were 

obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget. 

The approved budget is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification 

linked to performance outcome objectives. 

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from O 1-04-13 to 31-03-14. 

The annual financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore 

a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the 

Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.16. Budget Information ( continued) 

Changes between the approved and final budget are a consequence of reallocations within the 

budget. 

1.17. Related Parties 

A party is related to the entity if any of the following are met: 

- Directly or indirectly through one or more intermediaries, the party controls, is controlled or is

under common control with the entity,

- It is a joint venture or an associate,

- The party is a member of key management personnel of the Entity,

- The party is a close member of the the family of any individual mentioned above.

1.18. Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments where the entity commits itself to future transaction that will 

results in the future outflow of resources. Commitments represents both goods and services that 

have been approved but not yet contracted for and goods and services that have been approved 

and contracted for where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been 

awarded at the reporting period. 

1.19. Risk Management 

It is the policy of the entity to disclose information that enables the users of its financial 

statements to evaluate the nature and extent of risks arising from financial instruments to which 

the entity is exposed on the reporting date. Risk and exposure are disclosed as follows: 

Credit Risk 

Each class of financial asset is disclose separately . 

Maximum exposure to credit risk not covered by collateral is specified. 

Financial assets covered by collateral are specified. 

Liquidity Risk 

Liquidity risk is the risk that the entity will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated 

with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. Liquidity 

risk is managed by ensuring that all assets are reinvested at maturity at competitive interest rates 

in relation to cash flow requirements. Liabilities are managed by ensuring that all contractual 

payments are met on a timeous basis and if required, additional new arrangements are established 

at competitive rates to ensure that cash flow requirements are met. 
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Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

1.19. Risk management (continued) 

A maturity analysis for financial liabilities (where applicable) that shows the remaining undiscounted 

contractual maturities is disclosed in the notes to the annual financial statements. 

1.20. Events after reporting date 

Events after the reporting date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur 

between the reporting date and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Two types of events can be identified: 

(a) those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting date (adjusting events

after the reporting date); and 

(b) those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting date (non-adjusting events

after reporting date). 

Events after the reporting date that have been classified as adjusting events have been accounted 

for in the annual financial statements. The events after the reporting date that are classified as 

non-adjusting events after reporting date are disclosed. 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

2.Change in Accounting Estimate

2014 

The entity reassessed the useful lives of computer equipment which resulted in the change of the useful lives from 4 to 6 years. 

The effect of the change in accounting estimate resulted in the decrease in depreciation amounting to R108 065.85 for the 
current period. The effect on depreciation will be R49 143.80 for the future period. 

3. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Operational Account 
KZN Department of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs Call Account 
KZN Department of Economic Development and Tourism Call Account 
Department of Rural Development and Land Reform Call Account 

4.Property, Plant and Equipment

2014 

Cost/ Accumulated 
Valuation depreciation 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

Computer equipment 2 310 401 (763 942) 
Motor vehicles 1 420 995 (493 906) 
Furniture and fixtures 1 108 844 (722 089) 
Other fixed assets 217 514 (120 570) 

Total 5 0 57 754 I 10 0 50 7) 

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment- 2014 

Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Computer equipment 
Other fixed assets 

Reconciliation of Property, Plant and Equipment- 2013 

Furniture and fixtures 
Motor vehicles 
Computer equipment 
Other fixed assets 
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Carrying value 

1 546 459 
927 089 
386 755 

96 944 

2 957 247 

Opening 
balance 
475 334 
416 875 
915 572 

31 351 

1 839132 

Opening 
balance 
409 057 
555 176 
205 620 

62 701 

1 232 554 

Cost/ 
Valuation 

1 329 603 
691 505 

1 043 396 
94 050 

3158 554 

Additions 

65 449 
729 490 
980 798 
123 464 

1 899 201 

Additions 

148 873 

878 714 

1 0 27 587 

1 551 710 
49 019 492 
11 712 982 
10 504 470 

72 788 654 

2013 

Accumulated 
depreciation 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

(414 031) 
(274 630) 
(568 062) 
(62 699) 

(1 319 422) 

Depreciation 

(154 028) 
(219 276) 
(349 911) 

(57 871) 

(781 0 86) 

Depreciation 

(82 596) 
(138 301) 
(168 762) 

(31 350) 

(421 0 0 9) 

2013 

6 970 997 
32 779 514 
41 091 533 
16 441 057 

97 283101 

Carrying value 

915 572 
416 875 
475 334 

31 351 

1 839132 

Total 

386 755 
927 089 

1 546 459 
96 944 

2 957 247 

Total 

475 334 
416 875 
915 572 

31 351 

1 839132 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

5. Intangible assets 

2014 

2014 2013 

2013 

Cost / 
Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation 

Cost I
Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 
amortisation 

Computer software 4 280 845 

Reconciliation of intangible assets • 2014 

Computer software 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - 2013 

Computer software 

6. Operating lease Liability

Operating lease liability 

Minimum lease payments due 
- Within one year
- In second to fifth year inclusive 
- More than five years 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

2089 101) ! 191 744

Opening 
balance 

1 392 925 

Opening 
balance 

1 817 076 

2 343 026 

Additions 

1 937 819 

Additions 

461 312 

and 
accumulated 

impairment 

(950 101) 

Amortisation 

(1 139 000) 

Amortisation 

(885 463) 

130 070 

3 502 125 
17 043 444 
29 852 197 

50 397 766 

The entity entered into a 10 year lease for office premises commencing on the 1st of March 2014. Lease rentals are subject to 
an 8% escalation rate per annum. Lease payments under an operating lease shall be recognised as an expense in the 
statement of financial performance on a straight line basis over the lease term unless another systematic basis is more 
representative of the time pattern of the user's benefit. 

7. Employee benefit obligations

Defined contribution plan 

It is the policy of the ADA to provide pension benefits to all its employees. The pension fund benefit came into effect in 
February 2014. 

The ADA is under no obligation to cover any unfunded benefits. 

The total economic entity contribution to such schemes 

The amount recognised as an expense for defined contribution plans is 

8. Receivables from non-exchange transactions

Receivables from non-exchange transactions 

137 062 

137 062 

35 357 

1 392 925 

Total 

2 191 744 

Total 

1 392 925 

594 467 

2 818 489 
2 000 218 

4 818 707 

40 213 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

8. Receivables from Non-Exchange Transactions (continued)

Rreceivables are as a result of staff salary overpayment, the amount is being recovered on a monthly basis.

9. Contributed Capital 

Issued 
Initial contribution 

10. Payables from Exchange Transactions

Trade payables 
Accrued expenses 
Accrued leave pay 

11. Finance Lease Obligation 

Minimum Lease Payments Due 
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

less: future finance charges 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments 

Present Value of Minimum Lease Payments Due 
- within one year
- in second to fifth year inclusive

Non-current liabilities 
Current liabilities 

2014 

5 000 

26 002 
3 152 091 

305 134 

3 483 227 

86 184 
79 002 

165 186 
(25 401) 

139 785 

67 199 
72 586 

139 785 

72 586 
67 199 

139 785 

The ADA leased computer equipment on 27 February 2014 for 2 years. Lease installments of R7 182 are payable monthly in 
in arrears.The effective interest is charged at 17% per annum. Ownership will pass to ADA at the end of the lease term. 

12. Employee Related Costs

Basic salaries 
Movement in leave provision accrual 

13. Audit Fees 

Current year paid 

Prior year provision adjustment 

Audit fee expense for 2013 included prior year provision adjustment and current year figure. 

14. Taxation 

No provision has been made for taxation as the Trust is exempt from income tax. 
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17 585 845 
(172 837) 

17 413 008 

685 037 

685 037 

2013 

5 000 

159 158 
10 701 271 

477 971 

11 338 400 

13 816 644 
142 065 

13 958 709 

524 970 
(257 090) 

267 880 
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Notes to the Annual Financial Statements 

Figures in Rand 

15. Cash (used in) Generated from Operations 

Surplus 
Adjustments for: 
Depreciation 
Movements in operating lease assets and accruals 
Movements in provisions 
Amortisation 
Changes in Working Capital: 
Decrease/(lncrease) in Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 
Decrease/(lncrease) in deposits 
(Decrease)/lncrease in Payables from exchange transactions 
(Decrease)/lncrease in Unspent conditional grants and receipts 
Finance lease liability 

16. Commitments

Commitments 

Approved and Contracted for 
Projects 
Finance and administration 

Approved but not Yet Contracted for 
Projects 

17. Contingencies 

Contingent Assets 

2014 

2 546 020 

782 712 
(464 397) 

115 025 
1 139 000) 

4 856 

(7 855 171) 
(14 857 758) 

72 586 

:20 795 127) 

30 102 164 
3 245 336 

33 347 500 

75 410 000 

A contingent asset of R2 220 722.27 arose in the prior year due to failure of a service provider to honour a contract. The matter 
is still under investigation. The recoverability of the amount is not probable at 31 March 2014 

18. Related Parties 

Related Party Transactions 

BBS Farm 
- Spent
- Committed 

333 836 
117 402 

BBS Farm is a beneficiary of the agency and also belongs to Ms Busie Molefe who has been a member of the ADA board up to 
31 October 2013. An amount of R333 836.00 was spent on the farm and a further R117 401.56 was committed at year end. 

2013 

741 251 

421 009 
23 418 

115 025) 
855 463) 

(40 213) 
(10 000) 

4 627 372 
26 158 845 

30 951 194 

21 725 753 
2 496 040 

24 221 793 

66 610 013 

877 889 
569 626 
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Figures in Rand 

19. Board, Audit Committee and HR Committee Remuneration 

2014 Board 

Dr MS Mbatha (Board Chairperson) 
Dr ME Ngidi -Appointed 01 November 2013 
Adv RR Nirghin 
B Molefe -Term ended 31 October 2013 
Dr. J Chitja -Term ended 31 October 2013 
R Barnsley -Term ended 31 October 2013 

N Zwane -Appointed 01 November 2013 
SA Ndlela -Appointed 01 November 2013 
BD Mkhwanazi -Appointed 01 November 2013 
P Dabideen -Appointed 01 November 2013 
IZ Ngcobo -Appointed 01 November 2013 
WR Dladla -Appointed 01 November 2013 

2014 HR Committee 

R Baloyi - Resigned 31 October 2013 
IZ Ngcobo - Committee lacked quorum at 31 October 2013 
Dr J Chitja - Resigned 31 October 2013 
SA Ndlela 
BD Mkhwanazi 
P Dabideen 

2014 Audit Committee 

I Simjee -Chairperson from 01 May'13 
S Ndlovu -Appointed 20 August '13 
ABZ Ngcobo Appointed 20 August '13 
WNel 

2013 Board 

Dr MS Mbatha (Board Chairperson) 
T Nkwanyana 
B Molefe 
DrJ Chitja 
R Barnsley 
Adv RR Nirghin 

2013 HR Committee 

M Makhunga (HR Committee Chairperson) 
Z Ngcobo 
R Baloyi 
V Mkhize 
T Nkwanyana 
DrJ Chitja 
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Board fees 
473 939 

98 737 
96 275 
56 161 
56 161 
48 138 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 

1 070 101 

HR committee 
feestravel 

32 525-
8 464-
8 464-

13 939-
6 348-
6 348-

7 6088 

Audit 
Committee 

Fees 
76 070 
27 077 
27 077 
36 103 

166 327 

Board fees 
501 056 

69 472 
74 758 
72 207 
74 758 
72 207 

364 458 

HR Committee 
fees Travel 

36 2814 697 
38 3651 668 

38 087283 
17 799195 

11 7692 136 
12 697-

154 998 

L 

2014 2013 

Board travel Total 

6 174 480 113 
98 737 
96 275 

2 880 59 041 
56 161 
48 138 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 
40 115 

9 0 54 1 079 155 

HR committee Total 

32 525 
8 464 
8 464 

13 939 
6 348 
6 348 

7 6088 

Audit Total 

Committee 
Travel 

76 070 
27 077 
27 077 
36 103 

166 327 

Board travel Total 
7 626 508 682 

11 033 80 505 
350 75 108 
218 72 425 
811 75 569 
106 72 313 

20 144 88 4 602 

HR Committee Tota l 

40 978 
40 033 
38 370 
17 994 
13 905 
12 697 

979 163 977 
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Figures in Rand 

2013 Audit Committee 

S Rajah (Chairperson resigned 08 April'13) 
I Simjee 
S Mtshali 
WNel 
B Mbewu 
T Nkwanyana 

20. Remuneration of CEO and Executive Managers 

Chief Executive Officer - Mr. R Zimuto (resigned 30 June 2013) 
Acting Chief Executive Officer - Dr. T Mkhabela 

Remuneration of Executive Managers 
Acting Chief Operations Officer - Ms. R Dlamini 
Chief Financial Officer Mr. F Nduna (resigned 04 October 2013) 
Acting Chief Financial Officer - Ms. T Ngwenya 
Project Manager Cluster 1 - Ms. R Dlamini 
Project Manager Cluster 2 - Mr. P Sapsford 
Project Manager Cluster 3 - Mr. L Khumalo 
Legal & Corporate Services Manager - Mr. F Mbuli 
Specialist: Planning, Monitoring & Evaluation - Ms. P Vilakazi 

21. Irregular, Unauthorised, Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure

21.1. Irregular Expenditure 
Opening balance 
Add: Irregular Expenditure - current year 
Less: Amounts recoverable (not condoned) 

Irregular Expenditure Awaiting Condonation 

Prior year's irregular expenditure has been submitted to Provincial Treasury for condonation. 

Audit 
committee fees 

40 890 
23 154 

9 026 
9 026 

15 778 
5 798 

103 672 

2014 

Audit 
committee 

travel 

1 222 

2 084 

3 306 

332 317 
1 127 144 

895 607 
538 072 
320 752 
550 890 

I 007 980 
689 572 
854 127 
838 893 

74 801 783 
4 926 501 

79 728 284 

Irregular expenditure amounting to R1 .8 million was incurred in the current year as a result of a strategic partnership agreement 
that was signed without following the SCM policy. The agreement has subsequently been cancelled. Further R3.0m was 
incurred as a result of deviations from SCM processes that were inappropriately justified. No further action was taken. 

21.2. Fruitless and Wasteful Expenditure 
Opening balance 
Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Total 

3 698 
42 880 

46578 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure is due to interest charged by South African Revenue Services and a suppliers due to late 
payment. No further action was taken. 

22. Material Losses

A material loss of R2 220 722.27 million occurred as a result of failure by a service provider to honour a contract. The 
investigation is in progress. The recoverability of the amount is not probable at 31 March 2014. 

2013 

Total 

40 890 
24 376 
9 026 
9 026 

15 778 
7 882 

106 978 

1 076 611 

785 276 

749 861 
749 861 
553 745 
749 861 
749 861 

69 431 508 
5 370 275 

74 801 783 

3 698 

3 698 
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Figures in Rand 

23. Grants Receivedand Interest

KZN Department of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs 
KZN Department on Economic Development and Tourism 
Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
Interest 

2014 

88 154 000 
18 755 691 

5 646 241 

112 555 932 

Interest increased as a result of the repayment of intererst owing by the bank as a result of applying incorrect interest rates on 
the call accounts that were opened in March 2012. An amount of R3 261 665 was paid into the ADA bank accounts. 

24. Events After the Reporting Period

There are no events that occurred between the reporting date and the date on which the financial statements are authorised for 
issue. 

25. Correction of Prior Period Error

The following adjustments were made to amounts previously reported in the annual financial statements as a result of 
corrections made to prior years accumulated depreciation amount and the reclassification of leave provision to leave accrued. 

31 March 2013 Accumulated Surplus 
Surplus for year previously reported 
Increase in accumulated amortisation 

Restated acculumated surplus at 31 March 2013 

Leave provision 
Previously stated 
Reclassified to leave accrual 
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2013 

60 034 028 
74 947 001 
1 000 000 

642 593 

136 623 622 

2 862 355 
(168 147) 

2 694 208 

477 971 
(477 971) 
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26. Schedule of Grants and Expenditure

Project Expenditure Project opening Project Current year Project closing 
balance allocation expenditure balance 

01 April 2013 2013/2014 31 March 2014 31 March 2014 

THS Agreement 400 000 (400 000) 

lllovo agreement (188 583) 1115 000 1115 000 (188 583) 

BBS Farming 569 626 333 836 235 790 

Gledhow 96 000 39 000 135 000 

Makhoba Trust 4 019 662 4 658 813 5 294 888 3 383 587 

Buffelshoek 1 155 513 755 944 881 707 1 029 750 

Chicory 1 159 616 6 780 000 1 559 960 6 379 656 

Bayonne Dairy Farm 836 049 797 236 38 813 

Middelrus cluster 12 399 982 12 650 937 (250 955) 

Gugwini Trust Farm 167 938 450 000 771 505 (153 567) 

Aldoplex farm (2 437) 2 437 

TSB 614 818 3 169 897 3 769 897 14 818 

Sinethemba Trust 45 572 1 775 649 1 153 984 667 237 

Maveshe Valley Farm (280) (280) 

Nokusho 52 974 (52 974) 

Riverside/ Rivervalley farms 13 341 13 341 

Siyathokoza Comm Trust 250 000 639 314 40 157 849 157 

Mbhudula Comm Trust (1 000 000) 1 000 000 

Sokotshane Soya projects (791 113) 791 113 

Empangisweni Trust 8 727 901 6 501 775 9 435 480 5 794 196 

Land care/Fencing South/ Kwashushu/north 1 097 325 (1 097 325) 

project 
Poultry (Demiro/ Forlan/ Geda/ Qedisimo/ 
Bambela) 
Maize Milling plants/ Dhabhazi 

577 858 (577 858) lzibusiso 
Mlindaziko 
Nkululeko 1 638 140 248 090 I 145 045 741 185 

Sizuzimpilo 920 283 (459 898) 477 011 (16 626) 

Lanfine farm (168 634) 168 634 

Amajuba Grain 2 813 046 859 693 3 714 694 (41 955) 

Bannockburn Farm 372 913 (372 913) 

Amajuba District Yellow Maize 1 399 721 744 728 654 993 

Ezimtoti Processing 1 400 000 1 400 000 

lnkandla Essential Oils 1 079 061 I 079 061) 

Celokuhle 308 937 (308 937) 

Babanango 133 409 (133 409) 8 026 (8 026) 

Rooiport 2 573 284 226 716 2 800 000 

Sam's florist / Mbali flowers 800 000 800 000 

Vulamehlo Amakhosi Co-operative projects 1 000 000 1 000 000 

Msinga Co-operative Maize Production 650 000 650 000 

National fencing 407 132 407 132 

KwaMadubula Farm 56 549 (56 549) 

Nooitgedacht (North region dry beans/ Othaka/ 1 505 700 (1 505 700) 

Sokotshane dry beans) 12 082 331 3 663 867 8 418 464 

KwaSani Cluster (918 415) 918 415 

Stangerhoek Farm 539 868 (539 868) 

Wagenbietjies Poultry 
Enterprise llembe 
Ntuso Trust 
Uthukela Dry Beans 

1 298 162 (750 000) 323 190 224 972 
Killarney broilers 
Amafolosi 

(480 000) 480 000 

Mhlongo Piggery Farm 
3 425 673 2 200 000 5 550 824 74 849 

Nkhumbuleni 
498 640 (330 377) 210 730 (42 467) 

Cowboy Abattoirs 
200 237 700 000 881 226 19 011 

Besters 
1 200 000 (1 200 000) 
1 250 000 1 300 000 1 250 000 1 300 000 

33 33 
319 (319) 

200 000 200 000 
3 376 761 2 052 335 4 330 672 1 098 424 
2 996 135 (1 809 542) I 181 418 5 175 
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DEDT Capacity building 
Agriparks 1 800 000 1 453 193 
MaAnde Investments 1 120 070 1 395 733 
Pathan Sugar 2 597 678 
Phumelela Irrigation 155 079 
Sibani 1 476 221 1 176 221) 
Copperfield Dairy Farm 3 995 307 
Mabiza Qhudeni Project 
Umzimkhulu Wool Growers Association 1 755 944 1 732 052) 
Vegetable Production Ugu District 800 000 (200 000) 
Cut flower 4 000 000 
Dawn Valley Panderosa 1 270 238 729 762 
Distressed Farmers 320 000 1 100 000 
Makhathini Cotton 2 304 600 
Tugela Estate 6 200 000 3 000 000) 
Bhekishowe (54 759) 54 759 
Kwasa (5 324) 
KwaZamani (41 047) 41 047 
Beef Farmers Co-op 1 000 000 
Beef llembe 850 000 
Beef lmpendle 1 250 000 
Esizindeni 
Development farmer support programme 964 371 
Empethu Landcare 
Fahlaza 
Wandering Star 1 000 000 
lnwabi Grazing Camp 
Mboma Poultry 750 000 
Mfundweni Farmers Association 
Midlands Outgrower & Agrihub 8 481 479 
Mthethwa Processing 2 700 000 
Muden Outgrower 
Nkunzana/Just Veggies 11 100 000 
Ntingwe tea 2 000 000 
Silutshana 
Zululand Grain 3 960 546 

88 335 766 71 000 000 

Opening 
balance Allocation 

01 April 2013 

Goods and Services (909 853) 19 361 000 

Compensation for employees 8 892 194 18 519 000 

Allocated to projects (5 252 141) 7 836 000 

2 730 200 45 716 000 

Opening 
balance Allocation 

01 April 2013 

Opening amount (899 132) 

Property, plant and equipment 117 904 3 541 000 
Amount not received (5 760 000) 

Interest capitalised 1 425 672 5 646 241 

Subtotal (5 115 556) 87 241 

85 950 410 5 903 241 
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244 004 (244 004) 
2 353 370 899 823 
1 265 823 1 249 980 
2 433 588 164 090 

155 079 
67 631 232 369 

1 293 842 2 701 465 
17 464 (17 464) 
23 892 

559 897 40 103 
17 139 3 982 861 

1 148 700 851 300 
4 330 1 415 670 

2 304 600 
129 447 3 070 553 

(5 324) 

611 165 388 835 
850 000 

46 219 1 203 781 
22 723 (22 723) 

964 371 
43 987 (43 987) 
58 586 (58 586) 

953 132 46 868 
15 960 (15 960) 

750 000 
35 708 (35 708) 
50 669 8 430 810 
74 796 2 625 204 
22 116 (22 116) 

10 000 000 1 100 000 
1 999 764 236 

212 667 (212 667) 
3 959 987 559 

93 561 605 65 774 161 

Over/under 
Spent expenditure 

31 March 2014 31 March 2014 
15 830 613 2 620 534 
17 585 845 9 825 349 
17 025 183 (14 441 324) 

50 441 641 (1 995 441) 

Over/under 
Spent expenditure 

31 March 2014 31 March 2014 
(899 132) 

3 688 922 (30 018) 
5 760 000 

919 672 6 152 241 

10 368 594 5 223 091 

154 371 840 69 001 811 
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27. Statement of Comparison of Budget and actual amounts for Agribusiness Development Agency Trust for the 
year ended 31 March 2014 Budget on a cash basis

Revenue 
KZN Department of Economic Development and Tourism 
Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 
KZN Department of Agriculture and Environmental Affairs 
KZN Department of Cooperative Governance and Traditional Affairs 
Other income 
Interest 

Total income apportioned 

Expenses 
Finance and administration 
Capacity Building and Mentorship 
Technical Support 
On and Off Farm Infrastructure and Input 

Total expenditure 

Net Surplus/(Deficit) for the year 

Approved 
budget 

66 818 221 
16 441 000 

120 933 823 
3 571 000 

1 213 000 

192 536 044 

Approved 
budget 

38 150 000 
3 892 000 
6 300 000 

144 194 044 

192 536 044 

Actual 
income 

66 818 221 
16 441 000 

120 933 823 

36 856 
5 646 241 

208 096 141 

Actual 
expenditure 

25 127 531 
1 465 381 
3 321 776 

86 286 662 

116 201 350 

Under- expenditure was mainly due to challenges in the supply chain management process. The responses to bids and 
quotations was poor and sometimes fruitless. The project lists was signed late resulting in delays in implementation of the 
projects. 

R5. 7 million was received in the current year which was the budgeted for in the prior year. 

The second tranche payment for operating expenses was received during February 2014 which contributed to the under -
expenditure for Finance and Administration. 

Variance 

(3 571 000) 
(36 856) 

(4 433 241) 

(8 041 097) 

Variance 

18 834 469 
34 619 

2 978 224 
57 907 382 

79 754 694 

71 713 597 
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Agri-Business Development Trust t/a Agribusiness Development Agency 

(Registration number IT 2041/1999) 
Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2014 

Supplementary Information 

1. Grant Register 

Funder 

Department of Rural Development & Land Reform 
KZN Department of Agriculture & Environmental Affairs 
KZN Department of Economic Development & Tourism 
KZN Department of Cooperative Governance & 
Traditional Affairs 

Opening Receipts 
balance 

15 419 316 
32 779 514 88 154 000 
48 062 530 18 755 691 

1 021 741 

9 7  283101 106 909 691 

Interest Payments 

1 376 268 (7 036 929) 
2 145 500 (74 059 521) 
2 033 275 (54 840 990) 

91 197 (1 112 938) 

5 646 240 (137 050 378) 

The supplementary information presented does not form part of the annual financial statements and is unaudited 
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Closing 
balance 

9 758 655 
49 019 493 
14 010 506 

72 788 654 



'list of 9lbbreviatioos/9lcr01UJms 

ADA 

CASP 

CEO 

CFO 

CGA 

coo 

CPA 

DBSA 

DARD 

DEDT 

DRD&LR 

DTI 

FSA 

GATT 

GDP 

GDPR 

GFI 

HDI 

INR 

JV 

KZN 

Kwanalu 

LRAD 

M&E 

MEC 

MTEF 

NAFU 

NYDA 

PFMA 

PGDS 

SLA 

SPV 

Agribusiness Development ADA 

Comprehensive Agricultural Support Programme 

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Financial Officer 

Citrus Growers Association 

Chief Operating Officer 

Communal Property Association 

Development Bank of Southern Africa 

Department of Agriculture and Rural Development 

Department of Economic Development and Tourism 

Department of Rural Development and Land Reform 

Department of Trade and Industry 

Forestry South Africa 

General Agreement on Tariffs and Trade 

Gross Domestic Product 

Gross Domestic Product per Region 

Gross Farm Income 

Historically Disadvantaged Individual 

Institute of Natural Resources 

Joint Venture 

KwaZulu-Natal 

KwaZulu-Natal Agricultural Union 

Land Redistribution for Agricultural Development 

Monitoring and Evaluation 

Member of the Executive Council 

Medium Term Expenditure Framework 

National African Farmers Union 

National Youth Development ADA 

Public Finance Management Act 

Provincial Growth and Development Strategy 

Service Level Agreement 

Special Purpose Vehicle 
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